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This is an English translation of the Independent Auditors’ Report on the 2012 statutory Consolidated
Financial Statements of CIB Bank Zrt. issued in Hungarian. If there are any differences, the Hungarian

language original prevails. This report should be read in conjunction with the complete statutory
Consolidated Financial Statements it refers to.

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholder of CIB Bank Zrt.
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying 2012 consolidated financial statements of CIB Bank Zrt.
(hereinafter referred to as “the Bank™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, which shows total assets of MHUF 2, 19,288, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which shows loss for the year of MHUF -151.873. and the consolidated
statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Hungarian National Standards on Auditing and
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,




Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of CIB Bank Zrt. and its consolidated subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012, and of
their consolidated financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Other Matters

The 2011 consolidated financial statements of the Company were audited by another auditor, who
issued an unqualified opinion in its Auditor's Report dated 29 February 2012.

Report on the Consolidated Business Report

We have audited the accompanying 2012 consolidated business report of CIB Bank Zrt.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated business report in accordance with
the provisions of the Act on Accounting. Our responsibility is to assess whether this consolidated
business report is consistent with the consolidated annual report prepared for the same business year.
Our work with respect to the consolidated business report was limited to the assessment of the
consistency of the consolidated business report with the consolidated annual report, and did not include
areview of any information other than that drawn from the audited accounting records of the Bank.

In our opinion, the 2012 consolidated business report of CIB Bank Zrt. is consistent with the data
included in the 2012 consolidated annual report of CIB Bank Zrt.

Budapest, 27 February 2013

KPMG Hungaria Kft.
Registration number: 000202

Istvin Henye

Istvin Henye

Partner, Professional Accountant
Registration number: 005674
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2012
(million HUF)

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Note 2012 2011
Interest income 4 117,425 129,286
Interest expense 4 {82,048) (70,088)
Net interest income 35,377 59,198
Fee and commission income 5 34,374 39,103
Fee and commission expense 5 (7,793) (8,562)
Net fee and commission income 26,581 30,541
Income from trading activities 6 18,305 28,287
Other operating income 7 3,083 2,164
Net banking income 83,346 120,190
Impairment losses, provisions and net loan losses 8 (155,397) (105,719)
Operating expenses without bank tax 9 (56,067) (55,426)
Loss before bank tax and income taxes {128,118) (40,955)
Bank tax 10 (11,449) {998)
Loss before income taxes {(139,567) (41,953)
Income tax benefit / {(expense) 11 {12,306) 4,647
Net loss for the year (before appropriations) {151,873} {37,306}
The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 86 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
Bank of INTESA 7] SNNPAOLO




CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(million HUF)
Note 2012 2011

Net loss for the year (before appropriations) (151,873) (37,306)
Net non-realised (loss) / gain on available-for-sale

) . 426 171
financial assets (net of taxes) 13

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of 426 171
taxes) 13

Total comprehensive income for the year (151,447) (37,135)
Attributable to Equity holders of the parent (151,447) (37,135)

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 86 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2012
(million HUF)

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Assets Note 2012 2011
Cash and current accounts with central bank 15 33,014 40,069
Due from banks 16 107,698 177,928
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 17 26,289 7,954
Derivative financial assets 34 12,116 16,214
Loans and advances to customers 18 1,832,399 2,178,053
Allowance for loan losses 18 (314,417) (276,520)

Net loans and advances to customers 1,517,982 1,901,533
Financial investments — Available-for-sale 21 229,202 144,737
Financial investments — Held-to-maturity 21 5,662 5,574
Non-current assets held for sale 19 1,460 1,251
Deferred tax assets 11 10,186 19,712
Current tax assets 11 13,119 19,529
Other assets 20 6,902 9,041
Repossessed properties 22 115,687 137,407
Intangible assets 23 8,178 8,569
Property, plant and equipment 24 31,793 34,854
Total assets 2,119,288 2,524,372

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 86 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

Bank of INTESA [ SNNPAOLO



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2012

CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

(million HUF)
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Note 2012 2011
Deposits from banks 25 433,771 711,644
Derivative financial liabilities 34 29,236 35,949
Deposits from customers 26 1,282,813 1,364,819
Liabilities from issued securities 27 80,168 107,975
Deferred tax liabilities 11 5,570 5775
Current tax liabilities 11 3,164 3,043
Other liabilities 28 17,875 22,277
Provisions 29 6,701 5,368
Subordinated debt 30 65,626 23,411
Total liabilities 1,924,924 2,280,261
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 31 145,000 145,000
Reserves 32 101,692 (434)
Retained earnings (52,328) 99,545
Total shareholders’ equity 194,364 244,111
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 2,119,288 2,524,372
Commitments and contingencies 33 211,030 241,313
27 February 2013 e =

o AR e

Fabrizio Centrone

CEO

/
CIB Bank Ltd. |

/! Magdolna Jurfgész

e &Z .

CFO

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 86 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2012

CIB BANK LTD.
and subsidiaries

(million HUF)
2012 2011
Operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax (139,567) (41,953)
Depreciation 7,031 7,297
Net unrealized (gain) / loss on financial instruments (3,331) (12,914)
Increase in allowance for loan losses 37,897 82,089
Increase in allowance for repossessed properties 24,725 1,202
Working capital charges:
Decrease / (increase) in due from banks 5,137 124
Decrease / (increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (17,524) 2,497
Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances to customers 355,547 130,396
Decrease / (increase) in other assets (non-current assets, tax assets, other assets) 8,340 (9,359)
Increase / (decrease) in deposits from banks (277.,873) 58,649
Increase / (decrease) in deposits from customers and liabilities from issued
securities (110,424) (4,337)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities (provisions, tax liabilities, other liabilities) (2,949) (502)
Income tax charged (3,085) (5,214)
Cash flows used in operating activities (116,076) 207,975
Investing activities
Purchase of financial investments (169,118) (27,406)
Proceeds from sale of financial investments 150,621 60,579
Acquisitions to intangible and tangible assets (3,392) (2,745)
Acquisitions to repossessed properties (12,604) (17,399)
Disposals of intangible and tangible assets 307 184
Cash flows used in investing activities (34,186) 13,213
Financing activities
Subordinated debt 42,215 (16,645)
Cash from share capital 101,700 40,000
Cash flows from financing activities 143,915 23,385
Net increase / {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 41 {6,347} 244 543
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 331,102 86,559
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 324,755 331,102
Additional information for cash flows from operating activities
Interest recsived 117,735 127,758
Interest paid 77,234 66,658
Dividend received 86 60
Income tax paid 5,977 5,620
27 February 2013 > Y Duicd "
3 /et N 7
Fabrizio Centrone Magdolna Juride
CEO CFO
CiB Bani;; Lid.
The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 86 form part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bank of INTESA v SRNPAOLO
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j CIB BANK CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Part A — Accounting policies

()

2)

(3)

Corporate information

The majority owner of CIB Bank Ltd. (‘the Bank”) is Intesa Sanpaolo Holding
International S.A. /LU 1724 Luxembourg, Boulevard du Prince Henri 35./ which holds
67.6904% of the total ordinary shares of the Bank outstanding at year end (67.6905%
as at 31 December 2011). The ultimate parent company of the Bank is Intesa Sanpaolo
S.p.A./IT Torino, Piazza San Carlo 156/, a bank registered in Italy that holds 32.3096%
of the shares of the Bank as at 31 December 2012 (32.3095% as at 31 December
2011).

The Bank is a fully licensed Hungarian bank conducting local and international banking
business both within and outside Hungary. The registered address of the Bank is 4-14
Medve utca, Budapest. The average number of active employees of the Bank and its
subsidiaries was 2,905 in 2012 and 3,014 in 2011, respectively.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27 February
2013.

The Bank is consolidated by its ultimate parent company. The ultimate parent
company’s consolidated financial statements are available at www.intesasanpaolo.com
web site.

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the relative interpretations of the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as adopted by
European Union.

The original Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared in Hungarian and it
is the translation of the Hungarian version.

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements are set out below:

3.1 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of CIB Bank Ltd and its subsidiaries {hereafter
‘Group’) comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financial
instruments, other financial assets and liabilities held for trading, which all have been
measured at fair value. The carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities that are
hedged items in fair value hedges are adjusted to record changes in fair value
attributable 1o the risks that are being hedged.

‘Bank of INTEM SMNPAOILO
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CIB BANK CIB BANK L.

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(3)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

These Financial Statements are presented in Hungarian Forint (HUF) and all amounts
are rounded to the nearest million except when otherwise stated.

The official rate of exchange quoted by the Hungarian Central Bank as at 31 December
2012 the euro was EUR 1 = HUF 291.29 (2011: EUR 1 = HUF 311.13) and Swiss
Franc was CHF 1 = HUF 241.06 (2011: CHF 1 = HUF 255.91).

The Group presents its consolidated Statement of Financial Position in order of
liquidity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation.

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Positions are made up captions. Sub-captions and further information are detailed in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is comprised of captions
showing variations in the carrying amount of assets recognised during the year with a
balancing entry in valuation reserve, net of the tax effect.

The Consolidated Changes in Shareholders’ Equity table presents shareholders’ equity
accounts and changes that occurred in the reference year and in the previous year.

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows registered in the reference year and in the
previous year is prepared using the indirect method on the basis of which cash flows
from operating activities are represented by net income adjusted for the effects of non-
cash transactions. Cash flows are broken down into flows from operating activities, from
investing activities and from financing activities.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of CIB Bank
Ltd. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The financial statements of
subsidiaries (including special purpose entities that the Group consolidates) are
prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies.

All inter-company balances and transactions, including unrealized profits arising from
intra-group transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealized losses are eliminated
unless costs cannot be recovered.

Subsidiaries are those entities that are controlled by the Bank. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Where
there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the Consclidated Financial Statements include
the resulis for the part of the reporting year during which Bank has control.

Bank of INTEM [ SANPAOLO
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| CIB BANK

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(3)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held
by the Group and are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and within equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and separately from shareholders’ equity. For each business combination, the
Group elects to measure any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets which are
generally at fair value.

As at 31 December 2012 the Bank had the following subsidiary companies (“the
Group”):

Company Country of Principal Business
incorporation
CIB Leasing Co. Ltd. Hungary Financial leasing services
CIB RENT Leasing and . .
Trading Company Ltd. Hungary Leasing services
Etl('ja Real Estate Leasing Co. Hungary Real estate leasing services
CIB Leasing Holding Ltd. Hungary Share holding of CIB Leasing Ltd.
CIB Insurance Broker Ltd. Hungary Insurance agency services
- CIB Investment Fund
Management Co. Ltd. Hungary Fund management
CIB Factor Lid. Hungary Factoring financing services
CIL MNM Ltd. Hungary Property leasing services
Recovery Ltd. Hungary Professional services
CIB Car Ltd. Hungary Car trading services
. Property development and maintenance
Brivon Hungary Ltd. Hungary services

Business combinations and transactions under common control during 2012 are
detailed in Note 43,

In certain instances the Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities. The
Group has consolidated the special purpose entities it controls. In assessing and
determining if the Group controls such special purpose entities, judgment is made
about the Group's exposure to the risks, rewards and its ability to make operational
decisions,

The Group has inactive representative offices in London and in Brussels.

Bank of Emgﬂi
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z C[B B ANK CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(3) Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements requires the use of estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the amounts stated in the
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income and on the
potential assets and liabilities reported in the Financial Statements. Estimates are
based on available information and subjective evaluations, often based on past
experience, that are used to formulate reasonable assumptions to be made in
measuring operating events. Given their nature the estimates and assumptions used
may vary from year to year and hence it cannot be excluded that current amount
carried in the Financial Statements may significantly differ in future financial years as a
result of changes in subjective evaluations made.

The most significant cases for which judgments and estimates are required to be made
by the management include:
e the use of measurement models for determining the fair value of financial
instruments not listed on active markets,
the measurement of impairment losses on loans and other financial assets,
the estimates and assumptions on the collect ability of deferred tax assets,
the measurement of impairment on non-financial assets,
the measurement of impairment on available-for-sale investments,
consolidation of special purpose entities (SPEs),
the measurement of provisions for risk and charges,
the measurement of impairment on repossessed properties.

® & 9 » ¢ ¢ o

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input
to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

(b) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its problem loans and advances monthly to assess whether an
allowance for impairment should be recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about & number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance.

In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and advances, the
Group also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which,
although not individually identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk
of default than when originally granted. This collective allowance is based on the
internal rating of the loan or investment.

Bank of [NTES [ SNNPAOLO
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

3)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has unused tax loss carry forwards. These losses relate to the Bank and to
subsidiaries that have a history of losses. Due to the current market and economic
conditions the management considered per individual entities whether the Bank and
subsidiaries will have tax planning opportunities available that could support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. The management also considered
the fact that there was a change in Hungarian Corporate Tax Law effective from
1 January, 2012 in the deductibility of the losses carried forward. The deductibility was
reduced to 50% from 100% from the profit for the period.

The management assessed whether sufficient taxable profit will be available at some of
the entities in the Group to allow the benefit of all deferred tax asset to be utilised. The
Group did not recognise any deferred tax assets on losses carried forward where the
management believes that the profitability of the entity in the near foreseeable future is
doubtful or uncertain.

(d) Impairment on non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset of cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from
the budget for the next years.

{e) Impairment on available-for-sale investments

The Group reviews its debt securities classified as available-for-sale investments at
each reporting date to assess whether they are impaired. This requires similar
judgment as applied to the individual assessment of loans and advances.

The Group also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgement. in making
this judgement the Group evaluates among other factors historical share price
movements and duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost.

Bank of INTESA [ S\NPAOLO
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

3)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Consolidation of special purpose entities (SPEs)

The Group sponsors the formation of SPEs that may or may not be directly or indirectly
owned subsidiaries. The Group consolidates those SPEs it controls. In assessing and
determining if the Group controls SPEs judgement is exercised to determine whether

* the activities of the SPE are being conducted on behalf of the Group to obtain
benefits from the SPE’s operation;

¢ the Group has the decision making power to control or to obtain control of the
SPE or its assets;

e the Group has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE's
activities and

e the Group retains the majority of the risks related to the SPE or its assets in
order to obtain benefits from its activities.

(g) Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. In assessing and determining the
amount of obligation the Group considers whether a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of outflow of economic benefits.

(h) Impairment on repossessed properties

Impairment exists when the carrying value of repossessed property exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell. The fair value
less costs to sell calculation based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing the asset.

3.4 Changes in Accounting Judgements and Estimates

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following changes in judgements and estimations that have most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) Loan losses of Government Home rescue program

In dune 2011 the Hungarian parliament approved a new Act called “Home Rescue
Program” that was also amended in September 2011 and had a significant effect on
Group performance in 2012 and 2011. The new Act was applicable for the Bank and for
leasing companies (together: financial institutions).

Under the new law, eligible customers were allowed to repay in one lump sum their
mortgage loans denominated in defined foreign currencies at fixed rates of CHFE at
180 HUF; EUR at 250 HUF and JPY at 2 HUF, respectively. Customers had to notify
their repayment intentions to the financial institutions by 30 December 2011, and those
customers who fulfilled eligibility criteria set out in the legislation by 31 January 2012
were entitied to repay their loans by 28 February 2012,
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As a result of the new law the Group recognised losses on loans that were repaid by
customers up to 28 February 2012 in the amount of HUF 34,818 million from which
HUF 15,570 million was realised till 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011 the Group recognised an additional allowance for loan losses
of mortgage loans in the amount of HUF 21,280 million that were either paid in January
2012 or customers had fulfilled eligibility criteria at the end of January 2012. As a result
of allowance recognition the program had no effect on the profit and loss in 2012.

(b) Government Home rescue program for 2012

According to Laws and Regulations for 2012 further legislation became in force during
2012 in relation to the Groups mortgage portfolio as follows:

Customer mortgage loans 90 days past due

Customer mortgage loans that were 90 days past due as at 30 September 2011 were
subjected to conversion from foreign currency loan (EUR, CHF, JPY) to a HUF
denominated loan. On conversion the Group is required to forgive 25% of the
outstanding principal amount of the loans. The conversion to HUF loans occurred
during 2012. The whole transaction resulted at a loss of HUF 900 million for the Group.
As the 90 days past due loans were already considered impaired at 30 September
2011 the Group recognised an impairment allowance reflecting the 25% principal
forgiveness in relation to these customers loans of HUF 1,998 million in the
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2011. As a result of the
allowance and provision recognition the program had no significant effect on the profit
and loss account of the Group for 2012.

According to the legislation the after 90 days past due customers, the Group was
entitled to recover 30% of the losses from the State. This amount recovered through
claiming a deduction from 2012 bank tax and recognised in the Consolidated Financial
Statements in 2012.

Customer mortgage loans

Customers who were not part of the early mortgage repayment scheme and were not
subject to the 90 days past due 25% principal reduction were able to apply for fixed
foreign exchange rates for mortgage loan repayments should certain eligibility criteria
be met in 2012. This part of the Law has been prolonged by the Government till 31
March 2013

According to the Law eligible customers may apply to fix monthly instalments for a
period up to 5 years at fixed rates of EUR/250 HUF, CHF/180 HUF and JPY/2 HUF.
Differences between the fixed exchange rates and the current exchange rate each
month relating to principal repayments is accumulated to a “buffer account” which
accrues interest at a BUBOR linked rate. Differences between the fixed exchange rates
and current exchange rates each month relating to interest repayments is paid by the
Government but financial institutions are obliged to pay 50% of the difference as
financial institution charge on a quarterly basis. These figures are presented on a net
way in this Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The total net loss on mortgage loans portfolio applied to fix exchange rate repayments
as at 31 December 2012 amounts to HUF 122 million.
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3.5 Foreign currency transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is the Hungarian Forint (HUF).
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date. All differences are taken to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

3.6 Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose
with management's intention for which the financial instruments were acquired and their
characteristics. All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus
transaction costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

3.7 Date of recognition

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized
on the settlement date, i.e. the date that the financial asset is delivered except for
derivatives. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Derivatives are recognized on a trade date basis. Trade date is the date that the Group
commits itself to purchase or sell an asset.

3.8 Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

s The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash-flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash-flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either:

- the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or

- the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
in that case, the Group alsc recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

3.9 Reclassification of financial assets

Effective from 1 July 2008 the Group was permitted to reclassify in certain
circumstances non derivative financial assets from the Held for trading category and
into the Available-for-sale, Loan and receivables or Held-to-maturity categories. From
this date it was also permitted to reclassify in certain circumstances financial
instruments out of the Available-for-sale category into the Loans and receivables
category. Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the date of reclassification that
becomes the new amortised cost.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the Available-for-sale category any previous
gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate method. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the amount recorded in
equity is recycled to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Reclassification is at the election of management and is determined on an instrument
by instrument basis. The Group does not reclassify any financial instrument into the fair
value through profit or loss category after initial recognition.

3.10 Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets and financial liabilities that are classified either as held for trading or designated
by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
financial instruments are carried at fair vaiue with any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value being included as Income from trading activities in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it arises.

Included in this classification are debt securities, equities and short positions that have
been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

3.11 ‘Day 1’ profit or loss

When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, the Group immediately recognises the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a 'Day 1’ profit or loss) in
Income from trading activities. In cases where fair value is determined using data which
is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognised.
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3.12 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices, and valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument. The Group, in accordance with the
Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s policies, designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair
value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge). Hedge
accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are
met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values of hedged items (efficiency tests). In the case of a fair value
hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest
method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamortized fair value adjustment is recognised immediately
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement requires hedge
effectiveness to be assessed both prospectively and retrospectively. To qualify for
hedge accounting at the inception of a hedge and, at a minimum, at each reporting
date, the delta change in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk must be expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the
delta fair value or cash flows of the hedging instrument on a prospective basis, and on
a retrospective basis where actual results are within a range of 80% to 125%.

The Group applies hedge accounting to its fixed rate assets and liabilities hedged by
interest rate swaps in order to mitigate its interest rate risk in the banking book.
The Group has adopted fo perform its effectiveness fests using the "Dollar offset
method”. A consequence of the use of such methodology Is that the results can show a
rather high volatility with the risk of failing the test, when the level of the delta Net
Present Value (NPV) of both the hedge instrument and the hedging derivative is low
and the impact on the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is not
significant.

In the case of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting changes in the fair
value of such derivative instrument are recognised immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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3.13 Due from banks

Due from banks include financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

* Those the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
loss,

Those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale,
Those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement Due from banks are stated at amortized cost less any
amounts written off and allowance for impairment. The amortisation is included in
Interest income in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income in impairment losses, provisions and net loan losses.

Where the loan on drawdown is expected to be retained by the Group and not sold in
short term the commitment is recorded only when the commitment is an onerous
contract and it is likely to give rise to a loss (for example due to a counterparty credit
event).

3.14 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an active market and are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method less allowance for impairment. Third party
expenses, such as legal fees, incurred in securing a loan are treated as part of the cost
of the transaction. All loans and advances are recognized when cash is advanced to
borrowers.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the established
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest or
principal repayments and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

A credit risk allowance for loan impairment is established for significant loans if there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed foan, whether significant or not, it includes the loan in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment.
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Loans that are individually assessed for impairment (over HUF 150 million) and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment. When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off
against the related allowance for impairment; subsequent recoveries are credited to the
allowance in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

If the amount of the impairment subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after
the write-down, the release of the allowance is credited to the allowance.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of the Group’s internal systems that consider credit risk characteristics
such as asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and
other relevant factors and have been estimated based upon historical patterns of losses
in each component.

The general mostly applied rule of calculating impairments and allowances are based
on discounted expected future cash flow method, with best available data for the
Group. The present value of the available estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate. The calculation of the present value of the available estimated future cash flows of
a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure
less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is
probable.

Loans and advances to customers are classified to the non-performing loan category if
the receivable is impaired. Evidence of impairment may include that the borrower is
experiencing significant financial difficulties (is under liquidation), the probability that
they will enter into bankruptcy (past due rate is 100%) or delinquency in interest or
principal payments (have more than 90 days past due) and where observable data
indicates that there is a change in economic conditions that correlate with default
(managed by work-out department).

Where possible the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of
collateral. Restructuring may involve extending the payment period arrangements and
the agreement of new loan conditions, particularly interest level. Management
continuously monitors renegotiated or restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are
met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assessment.

in case customers are not cooperative the Group repossess the asset. The Group shall
dispose repossessed assets during holding period of 3-5 years subsequent fo the
purchase. Furthermore, the Group shall consider renting aspects {o existing debtors
subject to case by case evaluation through either appointed or self managed company.

3.15 Finance lease receivables

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to
ownership of the asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. The net
investment in finance leases provided by the Group is included in loans and advances
to customers. A receivable is recognized over the leasing period of an amount equalling
the present value of the lease payment using the implicit rate of interest and including
any guaranteed residual value. All income resulting from the receivable is included in
Interest income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

- there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

- arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal
or extension was initially included in the lease term:

- there is a change in the determination of whether fulfiment is dependent on a
specified asset; or

- there is substantial change to the asset.

3.16 Financial investments — Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets which carry
fixed of determinable payments and have fixed maturities and which the Group has the
intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity
financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in “interest income” in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.17 Financial investments - Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial investments are those which are designated as such or are
not classified as designated at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity or loans
and advances. After initial recognition, investments which are classified ‘available-for-
sale’ are re-measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on re-measurement to
fair value are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
for the period.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale the Group assesses
individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment ioss on that investment previously
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Future interest
income is based on the reduced carrying amount. The interest income is recorded as
part of interest income. If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale objective evidence would
also include a significant and permanent diminution in the fair value of the investment
below its cost. The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as 10% of the individual asset
and ‘permanent’ generally as greater than twelve months.
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3.18 Securities lending and borrowing

Securities lending and borrowing transactions are usually collateralized by securities or
cash. The transfer of the securities to counterparties is only reflected on the Statement
of Financial Position if the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred. Cash
advanced or received as collateral is recorded as an asset or liability.

Securities borrowed are not recognized on the Statement of Financial Position, unless
they are sold to third parties, in which case the obligation to return the securities is
recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value with any gains or losses
included in net trading income.

3.19 Fair values

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is
based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for
transaction costs. For equities traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to Stock Exchange quoted market closing prices at the close
of business on the reporting date.

The fair value of interest-bearing items not traded on an active market is estimated
based on discounted cash-flows using interest rates for items with similar remaining
maturity. The carrying value of demand deposits is considered to be the fair value.

For equities where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair
value is determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same, or is based on the expected discounted cash flows.

Classification is based on a hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
the measurement. An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details
as to how they are measured are provided in Note 40.

3.20 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date
(repos) continue to be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for non-trading investments.
The liability for amounts received under these agreements is included in Deposits from
banks. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest
expense.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date
(reverse repos) are not recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Amounts paid under these agreements are included in due from banks and other
financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as
interest income.

Bank of INTESM [ S\NPAOLO
25



o CIB BM CIB BANK Ltd.

fr—

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(3)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.21 Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Depreciation is

provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of all property, plant
and equipment, other than freehold land which is deemed to have an indefinite life.

The following depreciation rates and residual values are applied:

Depreciation rate Residual value
Premises 2% 30 or 50% of gross
value
Leasehold improvements 5% individually assessed
Electronic equipments and office furniture 14.5% individually assessed
Computer equipment 33% 10 % of gross value*
Software 20% individually assessed
Motor vehicles 20% 30% of gross value

* The Group does not apply residual value for servers.

Expenditure on internally developed software is recognised as an asset when the
Group is able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and
use the software in a manner that will generate future economic benefits and can
reliably measure costs to complete the development. The capitalised costs of internally
developed software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software and
are amortised overt its useful life. Internally developed software is stated at capitalised
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
the year the asset is derecognized. The assets residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date. Lands are not subject to depreciation.

3.22 Repossessed properties

Repossessed properties are usually repossessed properties under lease contracts or
real estate developments/projects or construction contracts. Repossessed properties
are measured at initial recognition at market value. Subsequent to initial recognition
repossessed properties are stated at lower of cost or market value. Repossessed
properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
repossessed property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from iis disposal.

SANPAOLO
26



| CIB BANK CIB BANK Lid.

and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(3) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Transfers are made to or from repossessed property only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from repossessed property to owner occupied property, the deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.

3.23 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase accounting method. This
involves recognizing identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired business at fair
value. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired, the discount on acquisition is recognised
directly in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of
acquisition.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirer's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the ‘value in use’ of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated.

When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets
plus cumulative translation differences and goodwill is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.24 Inventory

Inventories are recognized at cost, which comprise all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs. After initial recognition inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable value.

3.25 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded and met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as
held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

3.26 Deposits from banks and from customers

All money market and customer deposits are initially recognhized at fair value. After
initial recognition, all interest bearing deposits, other than liabilities held for trading, are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, less amounts repaid. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. Premiums
and discounts are amortized on an effective interest rate basis to maturity using the
effective interest method and taken to interest expense. For liabilities carried at
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amortized cost, any gain or loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the liability is derecognized.

3.27 Liabilities from issued securities

Financial instruments issued by the Group that are not designated at fair value through
profit or loss, are classified as Liabilities from issued securities, where the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation to deliver cash to
the holder. After initial measurement liabilities from issued securities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

3.28 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial
instruments  classified as available-for-sale financial investments and financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense is
recorded using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. The Group earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers.

Fee earned for the allowance for services over a period of time are accrued over that
period. Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction
for a third party are recognized on completion of the underlying transactions. Fees or
components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after
fulfiling the corresponding criteria. Loan syndication fees are recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income when the syndication has been
completed and the Bank retains no part of the loans for itself or retains part at the same
effective interest rate as for the other participants.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is
established.

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair
value and related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and
liabilities held for trading. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging
transactions.

3.29 Taxation

Current taxation is provided for in accordance with the fiscal regulations of the Republic
of Hungary. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

+ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
the carry forward for unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and at the time of transaction affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future;

o taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Recognised and
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Current tax and deferred tax items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are offset if legally enforceable rights
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relates to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

Bank tax

In August 2010 the Hungarian Parliament approved a new Act called the “bank tax” that
is applicable for financial institutions for 2010-2012. Each financial institution that
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

already had a closed financial year and related financial statements on 1 July 2010 was
subject to assessment and payment of this the bank tax in 2010. On 15 November
2010 the Hungarian Parliament approved an amendment to the Bank Tax Act
applicable for 2011. The amendment practically splits into two payment titles the
original bank tax payment obligation for banks only.

The basis and the rate of the new bank tax that establishes the tax payable was
different for the different types of financial institutions (in case of banks it is calculated
on the adjusted balance sheet total, in case of financial enterprises - such as leasing
companies - it is based on the net interest income and net commission income and in
case of investment fund management companies on the total net asset value of the
funds managed, etc.). From 2012 net interest income and net commission income can
be netted from bank tax point of view at leasing companies.

For 2012 and 2011 the basis and rates are uniformly based on statutory reported
financial data of the reporting entity for the period ended 31 December 2009.

The respective tax rates for 2012 were different for the types of financial institutions:
e.g. for credit institutions the tax rates were 0.15% of adjusted total asset value for the
first HUF 50 billion; and 0.53% had been applied for the amount exceeds HUF 50
billion. For leasing companies 6.5% had been applied for the net of net interest income
and net commission income.

In December 2011 the Law on Bank Tax was amended in conjunction with the early
mortgage repayment described by Home Rescue program. The amendment of the
Bank Tax Act allowed financial institutions to reduce their bank tax by 30% of losses
recognised in the Statutory Income Statement for 2011 on the final repayment of
mortgage loans according to the Government Home rescue program.

Further amendments to the Law on Bank Tax enabled financial institutions to reduce
their bank tax by 30% of the losses recognised for 2012 on Government Home Rescue
Program.

Further the bank tax is payable beyond the year 2012 based on a modification at the
Law in 2012.

Bank tax is presented as operating expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income as it does not meet the definition of income tax under IFRS.
Due to the significance of the amount concerned the bank tax is presenied as a
separate line on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.30 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right

to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.31 Fiduciary assets

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Group and
accordingly are not included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.32 Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group provides financial guarantees consisting
of letters of credit, letters of guarantees and acceptances. Financial guarantees are
initially recognized in the Financial Statements at fair value, and the fair value is
recognized in other liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are each
measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle any
financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantee and the amount recognized less
cumulative amortization. Any change in the fair value relating to financial guarantees is
taken to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.33 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income net of any reimbursement.

3.34 Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from business operations and is defined as profit
before tax adjusted with the share of profit or loss of associates.

3.35 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with an original maturity of three months
or less, including: cash and balances with the National Bank of Hungary and banks and
other financial institutions, treasury bills and other eligible bills, and loans and advances
to banks. Cash and cash equivalents include funds currently held at the National Bank
of Hungary as statutory reserve requirements specify minimum average monthly
balances and as such these funds are considered available for liquidity management
purposes.

3.36 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred
except those that are directly attributable to the acquisition. Borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition shall be capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset.
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3.37 Employee benefits — Share based payment transactions

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is
recognised as personnel expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-marked performance conditions are expected to be met, such
that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards
that meet the related service and non-market performance condition at the vesting date.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation
rights is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the
period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the
share appreciation rights. Any changes in the liability are recognised as personnel
expenses in Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions the grant-date fair value
of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-
up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

3.38 Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group's
Financial Statements are listed below. This listing of standards and interpretations
issued that the Group reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Group
intends to adopt those standards when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 7 and IAS 32 on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (2011)

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (amendments to IFRS
7) introduces disclosures about the impact of netting arrangements on an entity’s
financial position. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (amendments to I1AS 32) clarify the
offsetting criteria in I1AS 32 by explaining when an entity currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off and when gross settlement is equivalent to net settlement.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
and interim periods within those annual periods. Based on our initial assessment, the
Group is not expecting a significant impact from the adoption of the amendments to IAS
32.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated. As a result, the Group may need to change its consolidation conclusion
on respect of its investees which may lead to changes in the current accounting for
these investees. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014,
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IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 is not expected to have any impact on the Group because the Group does not
have interests in joint ventures and it is not a party to any joint arrangements. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (2011)

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure requirements about an
entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. It requires disclosing of information about the nature, risks and
financial effects of these interests. The Group is currently assessing the disclosure
requirements for interests in subsidiaries and unconsolidated structured entities in
comparison with the existing disclosures. These standards are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (2011)

IFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how fair value is measured, and
replaces the fair value measurement guidance that is currently dispersed throughout
IFRS. Subject to limited exceptions, IFRS 13 is applied when fair value measurement
or disclosures are required or permitted by other IFRSs. Although many of the IFRS 13
disclosure requirements regarding financial assets and financial liabilities are already
required the adoption of IFRS 13 will require the Group to provide additional
disclosures. These include fair value hierarchy disclosures for non-financial
assets/liabilities and disclosures on fair value measurements that are categorised in
Level 3. IFRS 13 is effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Presentation of
items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments require that an entity presents separately the items of other
comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those
that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. If items of other comprehensive
income are presented before related tax effects, then the aggregated tax amount
should be allocated between these sections. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments introduce a reputable presumption that the carrying value of
investment property measured using the fair value model would be recovered entirely
by sale. Management's intention would not be relevant unless the investment property
is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the asset's economic benefits over the life of the asset. This is the
only instance in which the presumption can be rebutted. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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IAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

The amendment requires actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income. The amendment removes the corridor method previously
applicable to recognising actuarial gains and losses, and eliminates the ability for
entities to recognise all changes in the defined benefit obligation and in plan assets in
profit or loss, which currently is allowed under the requirements of IAS 19. The
amendment also requires the expected return on plan assets recognised in profit or
loss to be calculated based on rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and disclosure requirements of
IAS 27 (2008) for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications. As well,
the existing requirements of IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31 for separate financial statements
have been incorporated into IAS 27 (2011). The Standard no longer addresses the
principle of control and requirements relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements, which have been incorporated into IFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group does not expect the amendments to Standard to have material impact on
the financial statements since it does not have any investments in associates or joint
ventures that will be impacted by the amendments. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to IAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Amendments do not introduce new rules for offsetting financial assets and
liabilities; rather they clarify the offsetting criteria to address inconsistencies in their
application. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014,

Bank of INTESA ] S\NPAOILO
34



CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Part B - Information on the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

(4) Interest income and interest expense

L A . (million HUF)
Interest income comprises 2012 2011
Interest from customers 91,071 113,165
Interest income from financial investments ~
Available-for-sale 18,307 10,066
Interest from banks 6,292 4,753
Interest income from financial investments - 394 390
Held-to-maturity
Subtotal 116,064 128,374
Inte(est from financial assets at fair value through 1,361 912

_profit or loss
Total 117,425 129,286

""" (million HUF)
Interest expense comprises

) 2012 2011
Interest paid to customers 65,915 42,594
Interest paid to banks 10,844 21,313
Interest paid on issued securities 5,289 6,181
Total 82,048 70,088

Interest expense related to financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit and
loss account amounts HUF 81,899 million as at 31 December 2012 and HUF 70,040
million in 2011, respectively.

(5) Fee and commission income and expense
{million HUF)

Fee and commission income comprises

2012 2011
Servicing fee income for loans 8,197 10,356
Account turnover fee income 9,148 89,599
Card fee income 4,515 5,118
Investment services fee income 3,548 4,033
Documentary fee income 1,419 1,762
Cash management fee income 1,563 1,863
Agent fee income 917 1,030
Other fee income 5,068 5,354
Total 34,374 39,103
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(5)

(6)

(7

Fee and commission income and expense (continued)

(million HUF)
Fee and commission expense comprises
- 2012 2011
Card fee expense 2,567 2,767
Account turnover fee expense 584 664
Investment services fee expense 254 372
Documentary fee expense 236 269
Servicing fee expenses for loans 110 280
Agent fee expense 122 88
Other fee expense 3,920 4116
Total 7,793 8,562
Income from trading activities
(million HUF)
Income from trading activities comprises
2012 2011
Net reva'luatlc)‘n galn/.(loss) from Kderlvatlves 2.726 5.607
and trading with foreign currencies
Net realised gain/(loss) from derivatives 15,508 22,892
Net revaluation gain/(loss) on hedging 103
: (9)
instruments
Net revaluation gain/(loss) from trading with
financial assets through profit or loss 680 (196)
Net realised gain/(loss) from trading with (711) (7)
financial assets through profit or loss
Net gain from financial investments — (1) )
Available-forsae A/
Total 18,305 28,287
Other operating income
{million HUF)
Other operating income / (expenditure)
comprises 2012 2011
?*éet §®§$@S from selling of tangible and (212) (222)
intangible assets
Dividend and similar income 86 60
Result on disposal of inventories (15) (32}
Result on disposal of investments - {12}
Income from property management 2,282 2,259
Net result on non-current asset held for sale 98 239
Other operating income / (expenditures) 844 {128y
Total 3,083 2,164
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(8) Impairment losses, provisions and net loan losses
. " (million HUF)
Impairment losses, provisions and net loan
losses comprises 2012 2011
Individual impairment for loan losses 114,329 72,224
Collective impairment for loan losses 1,283 30,904
Impairment for interest on loans 10,374 2,106
Provision expense/(reversal) for financial 101 (2,223)
guarantees
Provns!on expense/(rev.ersal) for other 3119 (1,715)
commitments and contingencies
Result on sale of loans 1,656 1,509
Impairment losses on repossessed properties 25,310 1,151
Other impairment losses for other receivables 1,018 541
Other provision expenses (1,793) 1,222
Total 155,397 105,719
(9) Operating expenses without bank tax
, ‘ (million HUF)

Operating expenses comprises 2012 2011
Personnel expenses 24,205 24,767

a, Salaries 17,162 17,874

B, Other benefits 1,507 1,495

¢, Social contributions 5,536 5,398
Depreciation 7,031 7,297
Off{ce and Information Technology 6.214 5,346
maintenance
Other taxes and obligatory fees 3,736 2,926
Material expenses 3,104 3,064
Rent and leasing 3,081 3,020
Communications 2,378 2,217
Advertising 1,213 1,386
Expert fees 731 1,039
Other expenses 4,374 4,364
Total 56,087 55,426
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(10)

(11)

Bank tax

The following table illustrates the bank tax obligation of the Group in 2012 and 2011.

(million HUF)
Company 2012 2011
- CIBBank Ltd. " , 10,902 514
CIB Leasing Co. Ltd."? 432 368
CIB Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd. 67 67
CIB Faktor Ltd. 48 49
Total 11,449 998
Note

in December 2011 the Law on Bank Tax has been amended in conjunction with the
early mortgage repayment described by Home Rescue Act. The amendment of the
bank tax act allowed financial institutions to reduce their bank tax by 30% of losses
recognised in the Statutory Income Statement for 2011 on the final repayment of
mortgage loans according to the Government Home rescue program.

Note @

Effective from 1 January 2012 the Bank Tax law has been amended for Leasing
companies. The amendment allows net up interest income with net fee and commission
income from taxation base point of view.

Income tax benefit / (expense)

The current income tax expense is based on the corporate income tax payable on the
results for the year determined in accordance with Hungarian accounting and taxation
rules.

The corporate income tax rate of 19% applicable to all Group companies but dependent
from the level of profitability the tax rate has been reduced to rate of 10% of the amount
of profit before tax. If the profit before tax of a company is below HUF 500 million the
corporate income tax rate is 10%. If the profit before tax of a company is above this
amount the corporate income tax rate is 19% for the part of the profit above HUF 500
million.

For deferred tax calculation purposes the Group applied the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

) {rnillion HUF)
Income tax benefit / (expense) comprises
, 2012 2011
Current income tax charge 349 {162)
A, Corporate Income tax 349 (162)
Other income type taxes (3,434) (5,052)
A, Local business tax {2,984) (4,441)
B, Innovation contribution (450) (611)
Deferred income tax (9,221) 9,861
Total {12,3086) 4,647

The other income type taxes contain the local business tax and the innovation
contribution {revenue driven taxes),

Bank of INTES 7 SNNPAOIO
38



o

| CIB BANK CIB BANK Ltd.

and its subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(1)

(12)

Income tax benefit / (expense) (continued)

Reconciliation between the income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory income tax rate and the income tax expense at the Group’s effective income
tax rate is not applicable due to the loss for the years ended 31 December.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 2012 2011

comprise (million HUF) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Loans 43 2,534 5 2,050
Leasing 2,021 1,386 2,514 1,782
Properties - 1,209 15 1,327
Securities at fair value - 325 - 366
Carry forward unused tax losses 7,411 - 16,192 -
Other assets and liabilities 470 116 645 250
Total deferred tax to Income

Statement 9,945 5,570 19,371 5,775
Deferred tax recognised in equity 241 - 341 -
Total deferred tax 10,186 5,570 19,712 5,775

The management assessed whether sufficient taxable profit will be available at some of
the entities in the Group to allow the benefit of all deferred tax asset to be utilised and
due to the reduction in tax deductibility reduced the deferred tax asset as at 31
December 2011 with HUF 8,096 million (assuming 19% income tax rate).

The Group did not recognise any deferred tax assets on losses carried forward where

the management believes that the profitability of the entity in the near foreseeable
future is doubtful or uncertain.

Dividend paid

There were no dividends, declared or paid in either 2012 or 2011.
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(13)

(14)

Comprehensive income

A. Other comprehensive income - Net non-realised (loss) / gain on available-for-
sale financial assets (net of taxes)

Net non-realised (loss)/gain on available-for-sale {million HUF)
financial assets comprise

2012 2011
Net gains/(losses) from changes in fair value 300 (318)
Deferred tax effect of net gains/(losses) from
changes in fair value (57) 60
Amortization to net profit 227 329
Deferred tax effect of amortization to net profit (44) (62)
Deferred tax effect of tax change rate - 162
Total 426 171

Share-based payment transactions

In 2012 Intesa Sanpaolo Group established an Incentive System which involves the
use of Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares to be purchased on the market upon specific
authorization. Main references of the System are the followings:
* specific remuneration rules applied to “Key personnel” meaning those whose
decisions have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile;
e the ratio of the fixed component to the variable component of remuneration,
suitably balanced;
o form the variable component at least 40% must be subject to deferred payment
systems for a period of at least 3 years and at least 50% must be disbursed in
shares or instruments linked to shares.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows; share appreciation rights are
settled in cash:

Grant date / employees entitled Number of Vesting conditions
instruments

Share grant to key management

personnel at 31 December 2012 58,521 7ssigned in 2014 and

available in 2015.

The fair value of the intesa Sanpaolo shares was HUF 22 million at measurement date.

Employee expenses for share-based payment {million HUF)
fransactions comprise

2012 2011
Shares granted in 2012 for 2011 17 -
Expense recognised as personnel expenses - -
Effect of changes in the fair value of shares 5 -
Total carrying amount of liabilities for cash-settled 22 )
arrangements
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(15) Cash and current accounts with central bank

Cash and current accounts with the central bank comprise notes and coins of various
currencies and nostro accounts with the central bank kept in Hungarian Forint. The
Bank is required to maintain a minimum average balance for the month equivalent to
2% of the Bank’s total resident customer deposits, foreign customer HUF and currency
(less than one year) deposits with the National Bank of Hungary, both in 2012 and 2011
respectively.

Cash and current accounts with central bank (million HUF)
»comprnses 2012 2011

Cash 9,938 8,994

Current HUF account with the National Bank of 23.076 31,075
_Hungary

Total

(Included cash and cash equivalents Note 41) 33,014 40,069

(16)  Due from banks
Due from banks comprises (million HUF)
2012 2011

Foreign currency nostro accounts 10,099 13,414

Due from banks less than 90 days 97,599 159,377

Included in cash equivalents (Note 41) 107,698 172,791

Due from banks more than 90 days - 5,137

Total 107,698 177,928

(17)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels at fair value through profit or {million HUF)

loss comprises 2012 2011

Hungarian Government securities — HUF 152 144

Hungarian Government securities — NON-HUF 14 -

included in cash equivalents (Note 41) 166 144

Hungarian Government securities - HUF 25,778 7,115

Hungarian Government securities — NON-HUF 270 127

Bank and corporate bonds ~ HUF - 3

Shares listed on stock exchange — HUF 53 524

Shares listed on stock exchange — NON-HUF 22 -

ther securities - NON-HUF ) - 41
Total 26,289 7,954
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(17)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss includes only financial assets
classified as held for trading. The Group has not designated financial assets as fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Income from equity investments and other non-fixed income instruments is recognized
in other operating income.

(18)  Loans and advances to customers
Analysis by sector

The gross loan portfolio may be analysed by sector as follows:

(million HUF) 2012 % 2011 %
Trading 195,473 10.67 224,122 10.29
Private customers 524,953 28.65 670,895 30.80
Real estate investments 459,919 25.10 548,089 2517
Other, mostly service industries 329,802 18.00 340,248 15.62
Food processing 34,299 1.87 38,010 175
Transportation and communication 58,466 3.19 75,525 347
Light industry 53,920 2.94 64,520 2.96
Heavy industry 48,765 2.66 55,853 2.56
Financial activities 73,377 4.00 99,176  4.55
Agriculture 42,998 2.35 49,672 2.28
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 10,427 0.57 11,943 055
Total 1,832,399 100.0 2,178,053 100.0
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(18)

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

The leasing subsidiaries of the Bank operate in the domestic leasing market and provide
finance lease products to customers. The following tables indicate the key amounts of
this activity for the not past due receivables as at 31 December of the year.

Receivables from finance lease activities comprise

(million HUF)
2012 2011
~ Gross lease receivables due
Within one year 49,719 59,615
One to five years 85,505 109,590
More than five years 40,765 50,347
Total 175,989 219,552
~ The present value of minimum lease payments
receivables comprise 2012 2011
Within one year 40,882 48,212
One to five years 70,225 89,052
More than five years 31,754 37,779
Total 142,861 175,043
Unearned finance lease income 33,128 44,509
~Accumulated allowance for uncollectible
minimum lease payments receivable 11,744 7,920

The term of the contracts are usually between 3 months and 10 years except in the case
of some machinery contracts and property leasing contracts where the duration may

reach 35 years or in some cases more.

Allowance for loan losses

Al for | | e {million HUF)
owance an loss mpris

ance for lo SSES COmp 2012 2011
Opening balance 276,520 194,431
Increase of allowance during the year 282,019 189,194
Decrease of allowance during the year {211,288) {64,330}
Write-off 32,834) (42,775)
Closing balance 314,417 276,520
Allowance for loan losses comprise (million HUF)

a or loan es r
W oan fosses compr 2012 2011

Individual allowance 298,050 247,004
Collective allowance 16,367 29,516
Total 314,417 276,520

The revaluation loss on loans specified as hedged items was HUF 747 million as at 31

December 2012,
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

In 2012 and in 2011 the Group operated in a strongly recessionary environment which
had an impact on the business performance and resulted in negative growth rates in all
segments and significantly higher allowance for impairment.

The liguidation value of collateral that the Group holds relating to loans at 31 December
2012 amounts to HUF 1,756,529 million and HUF 1,864,322 million as at 31 December
2011 respectively.

The amount of restructured loans was HUF 170,489 million as at 31 December 2012.
Restructured loans are those exposures where the Group renegotiates the original
terms of a debt due to the deterioration of the borrower’s creditworthiness. If such
renegotiation results in a loss, the exposure will be classified as restructured.

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had no reverse repurchase and securities
borrowing agreements. As at 31 2011 the Group received securities in the framework of
reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreement that it was allowed to sell with
a fair value of HUF 197 million respectively.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets held for sale contains repossessed leased assets (mainly cars and
other tangible assets). Repossession is due to the insolvency of the lessees. These

assets are mostly sold within one year after repossession.

Other assets

oth ‘ . (million HUF)
er assets comprises 2012 2011
Accrued incomes, costs and expenses 1,733 3,296
Settlement accounts 314 891
Trade receivables 1,928 3,381
Inventories 1,046 172
_Other assets 1,881 1,301
Total 6,902 9,041

Inventories contain mainly material products that are used for the banking activity.

Financial investments

ilion HUR)

Financial investments - Available-for- (million HUF)

§aie comprises 2012 2011

Hungarian Government securities — HUF 183,878 118,098

Included in cash equivalents (Note 39) 183,878 118,098

Hungarian Government securities — HUF 43,512 26,555

Equity investment — HUF 1,812 84

Total 229,202 144,737
ifli )

Financial investments - Held-to-maturity (million HUF)

comprise 2012 2011

Hungarian Government securities - HUF 5,662 5,574

Total 5,662 5,574
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(22) Repossessed properties

(million HUF)
Repossessed properties comprise

2012 2011
Opening balance 137,407 91,493
Additions 19,844 48,165
Depreciations (307) (245)
Sales (2,475) (804)
Reclassifications due to change in legal status (14,057) -
Net foss from impairment adjustment (24,725) (1,202)
Closing balance 115,687 137,407

Repossessed properties are carried at historic cost (at fair value at initial recognition)
less allowances for depreciation and impairment.

(23) Intangible assets

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 intangible assets and the related accumulated
depreciation comprised the following

Cost of intangible assets

(million HUF) 2012 Other changes* Disposals Acquisitions 2011
Software

licences and 33,576 6 - 2,319 31,251
development

Goodwill 877 - - - 877
Other 1,505 - - - 1,505
Total 35,958 6 - 2,319 33,633

. Depreciation of intangible assets

(million HUF) 2012 Other changes* Disposals Additions 2011
Software

licences and 27,389 - - 2,716 24,673
development

Goodwill 56 - - - 56
Other 335 - - - 335
Total 27,780 - - 2,716 25,064

* Other changes relate to reclassifications between intangible and tangible assets categories.

Cost of intangible assets

(million HUF) 2011 Other changes* Disposals Acquisitions 2010

Software

licences and 31,251 72 (14) 1,324 25,869

development

Goodwill 877 - - - 877

Other 1,505 170 - - 1,335

Total 33,633 242 (14) 1,324 32,081
Bank of INTES v SNNPAOLO
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(23)

(24)

Intangible assets (continued)

(million HUF) Depreciation of intangible assets
2011 Other changes* Disposals Additions 2010
Software
licences and 24,673 67 (14) 3,039 21,581
development
Goodwill 56 - - - 56
Other 335 170 - - 165
Total 25,064 237 (14) 3,039 21,802
, Net book value of intangible assets
iflion HUF

(million HUF) 2012 2011
Software licences and development 6,187 6,578
Goodwill with indefinite life 821 821
Other (customer list) with indefinite life 1,170 1,170
Total 8,178 8,569

The goodwill concerns to the purchase of CIB Faktor Ltd years ago. The Group applied
an impairment test on goodwill and other intangible assets, like customer list whether the
carrying amount is less than its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a
discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
upcoming years. Based on the impairment test the value in use of the goodwill is higher
than its’ carrying amount.

Software licences and developments have definite life. The amount of internally
developed software is HUF 279 million as at 31 December 2012.

Property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 property, plant and equipment and the related
accumulated depreciation comprised the following:

Cost of property, plant and equipment

(million HUF) 2012 Other changes* Disposals Acquisitions 2011
Land, 30,640 (50) 300 183 30,807
premises

Leasehold 8,358 46 427 53 8,686
improvements

Electronic

equipment 11,096 (84) 384 337 12,127
and office

furniture

Computer 8,473 59 1,360 510 9,264
equipment

Motor 696 - 40 12 724
vehicles

Other 121 : : ; 121
Total 60,284 (29) 2,511 1,095 61,729

Bank of [NTESA [iv] SN\NPAOLO
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(24)  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(million HUF) 2012 Other changes*  Disposals  Addition 2011

Land, 7,242 (8) 127 367 7,010

premises

Leasehold

improvements 4,014 10 427 1,398 3,033

Electronic

equipment and 9,530 7 360 1,194 8,689

office furniture

Computer 7,254 9) 1,263 814 7,712

equipment

Motor vehicles 451 - 27 48 430

Other - - - - -

Total 28,491 - 2,204 3,821 26,874
- Cost of property, plant and equipment

(million HUF) 2011 Otherchanges* Disposals Acquisitions 2010

Land, 30,807 931 (119) 80 29,915

premises

Leasehold

improvements 8,686 (1,135) (1,600) 286 11,135

Electronic

equipment and 12,127 (299) (790) 305 12,911

office furniture

Computer 9,264 313 (532) 676 8,807

equipment

Motor vehicles 724 ) (99) 3 821

Other 121 - () - 123

Total 61,729 (191) (3,142) 1,350 63,712
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(million HUF) 2011 Other changes* Disposals  Addition 2010

Land, 7,010 196 (119) 421 6,512

premises

Leasehold 3,033 (472)  (1,600) 1,073 4,032

improvements

Electronic

equipment and 8,689 (35) {666} 1,357 8,033

office furniture

Computer 7.712 54 (502) 970 7,190

equipment

Motor vehicles 430 (H (71 68 434

Other . - - - -

Total 26,874 (258) (2,958) 3,889 26,201

* Other changes relate to reclassifications between intangible and tangible assets categories.

Bank of INTES |77 SNNPAOLO
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(24)

(25)

(26)

(27}

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

. (million HUF)
Net book value of property, plant and equipment 2012 2011
Land, premises 23,398 23,796
Leasehold improvements 4,344 5,653
Electronic equipment and office furniture 2,466 3,438
Computer equipment 1,219 1,552
Motor vehicles 245 294
Other 121 121
Total 31,793 34,854
Deposits from banks
) . (million HUF)
Deposits from banks comprise 2012 2011
Deposits from banks in Hungary 47,247 42,246
Deposits from banks in other countries 386,524 669,398
Total 433,771 711,644
- from which related party 230,083 495,299
Deposits from customers
s f ) (million HUF)
Deposits from customers comprise 2012 2011
Deposits from customers in Hungary 1,194,836 1,229,927
_Deposits from customers in other countries 87,977 134,892
Total 1,282,813 1,364,819
- from which related party 52,073 55,265

The revaluation gain on deposits specified as hedged items was HUF 1

23 million as at

31 December 2012 and HUF 350 million as at 31 December 2011 respectively.

Liabilities from issued securities

{million HUF)
Liabilities from issued securities comprise

2012 2011
Gross amount of issued securities 91,690 115,118
Repurchased amount of issued securities (15,429) (12,568)
Revaluation on hedging instruments 19 (16)
Accrued interest payable from the net amount of issued
securities 3,888 5,441
Met amount of liabilities from issued securities 80,168 107,975

Bank of INTESA /v SANPAOLO
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(27)  Liabilities from issued securities {continued)

Issued securities listed on the Budapest Stock Exchange (million HUF)
comprise the following sets of securities 2012 2011
CIB EUROKAM bonds were issued in EUR since 15 April 2009 - 1431
and matured on 16 April 2012. The bonds' interest was fixed to '
ECB prime rate + 2.5%.
CIB 2012/A bonds were issued in HUF since 2 February 2009 . 8390
and matured on 3 February 2012. The bonds paid interest of '
30.0% at maturity.
CIB K 2012/A bonds were issued in HUF since 2 April 2009 and - 3640
matured on 2 April 2012. The bonds' interest was fixed to '
Hungarian National Bank prime rate + 1.5%.
CIB K 2012/B bonds were issued in HUF since 31 July 2009 and - 5701
matured on 31 July 2012. The bonds' interest was fixed to ’
Hungarian National Bank prime rate + 1%.
CIB 2013/A bonds were issued in HUF since 21 July 2010 and 8207 6993
will mature on 31 December 2013. The bonds pay fix interest of ' ’
25.0% at maturity.
CIB 2015/A bonds were issued in HUF since 21 July 2010 and 4976 4680
will mature on 31 December 2015. The bonds pay fix interest of ’ ’
44.0% at maturity.
CIB CL 2012/A bonds were issued in HUF since 6 August 2010 . 16654
and matured on 9 August 2012. The bonds bear interest at 3 '
month BUBOR plus 80 basis points.
CIB EU 12/A bonds were issued in EUR since 19 August 2010 . 27533
and matured on 21 August 2012. The bonds paid fix interest of ’
4.0% annually.
CIB EU 12/B bonds were issued in EUR since 7 October 2010 . 8799
and matured on 8 October 2012. The bonds paid fix interest of ’
3.5% annually.
CIB CL 2012/E bonds were issued in EUR since 31 March 2010 . 8047
and matured on 30 March 2012. The bonds paid fix interest of o
2.2%.
CIB EUROKAM 13A bonds were issued in EUR since 16 April 406 381
2010 and will mature on 16 April 2013. The bonds' interest is fixed
to ECB prime rate + 1.25%.
CIB CL 2013/A bonds were issued in HUF since 3 March 2011 5026 3055
and will mature on 8 March 2013. The bonds bear interest at 3 ' ’
month BUBOR plus 60 basis points.
CIB CL 2013/B bonds were issued in HUF since 22 September 8314 8120
2011 and will mature on 24 September 2013. The bonds bear ’ ’
interest at 3 month BUBOR plus 100 basis points.

Bank of INTESA [i1] SNNPAOLO

49



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

CIB BANK Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

(27)

(28)

Liabilities from issued securities (continued)

Issued securities listed on the Budapest Stock Exchange
comprise the following sets of securities (continued)

{million HUF)
2012 2011

CIB EU 13/A bonds were issued in EUR since 2 May 2011 and
will mature on 3 May 2013. The bonds pay fix interest of 3.5%
annually.

CIB EU 13/B bonds were issued in EUR since 22 August 2011
and will mature on 26 August 2013. The bonds pay fix interest of
3.5% annuaily.

CIB CL 2014/A bonds were issued in HUF since 26 July 2012
and will mature on 9 June 2014. The bonds bear interest at 3
month BUBOR plus 80 basis points.

CIB CL 2014/B bonds were issued in HUF since 5 November
2012 and will mature on 6 November 2014. The bonds bear
interest at 6 month BUBOR plus 80 basis points.

CIB CL 2015/A bonds were issued in HUF since 9 August 2012
and will mature on 10 August 2015. The bonds bear interest at 3
month BUBOR plus 100 basis points.

CIB ECL 2015/A bonds were issued in EUR since 10 August
2012 and will mature on 10 August 2015. The bonds bear
interest at 6 month EURIBOR plus 310 basis points.

CIB EU 14/A bonds were issued in EUR since 10 August 2012
and will mature on 11 August 2014. The bonds pay fix interest of
3.7% annually.

CIB EU 14/B bonds were issued in EUR since 11 September
2012 and will mature on 12 September 2014. The bonds pay fix
interest of 3.5% annually.

CIB FIX 15/A bonds were issued in HUF since 3 February 2012
and will mature on 3 February 2015. The bonds pay fix interest of
28% annually.

CIB Kincsem bonds

4,382 4,482

2,928 131

8,036 -

1,877 -

10,124 -

1,015 -

11,837 -

5,685 -

7,437 -

8 8

Total

80,168 107,875

Other liabilities

N : {million HUF)
Other liabilities comprise 2012 2011
Accrued liabilities 2,318 3,975
Settlement accounts 6,565 10,614
Suppliers 4,490 3,654
Financial guarantees 2,948 2,868
Cthar liabilities 1,554 1,166

Total

17,875 22,277

Bank of [NTES |7
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(28)

(29)

(30)

Other liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantees comprise (million HUF)
2012 2011
Opening balance 2,868 5,040
Increase during the year 1,454 1,374
Decrease during the year (1,374)  (3,546)
Closing balance 2,948 2,868
Provisions
Commitments
fr?\;l?on HUF) ‘and ' Other Total
contingencies
Opening balance 845 4,521 5,366
Increase of provision during the year 3,443 1,941 5,384
Decrease of provision during the year (315) (3,734) (4,049)
Closing balance 3,973 2,728 6,701
2011 Commitments
(million HUF) and Other Total
contingencies
Opening balance 2,586 3,300 5,886
Increase of provision during the year 1,317 3,052 4,369
Decrease of provision during the year (3,057) (1,830) (4,887)
Closing balance 846 4,522 5,368

Provisions for commitment and contin
All of the provisions expected to incur

Subordinated debt

gences were created for future credit obligations.
cost over one year.

{million HUF)
Subordinated debt comprises

2012 2011
From Intesa Bank Ireland plc for 45 million EUR. The debt's 13,108 14,001
expiry date is 24 October 2014 with interest payable at 3 months
EURIBOR plus 0.80%:
From Intesa Bank Ireland plc for 30 million EUR. The debt's
expiry date is 26 November 2021 with interest payable at 8,739 9,334
3 months EURIBOR plus 0.37%:
From Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A for 150 million EUR. The debt's
expiry date is 21 December 2019 with the interest payable at 3 43,694 -
months EURIBOR plus 4 .06%.
Accrued interests 85 78
Total 65,826 23,411
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(31) Share capital

(32)

(33)

During 2012 the authorised share capital was increased by HUF 3 by Intesa Sanpaolo
S.p.A. through the issuing of 3 ordinary shares of HUF 1 each.

At 31 December 2012 the fully paid share capital consisted of 145,000,000,003
ordinary shares of HUF 1 each.

During 2011 the authorised share capital was increased by HUF 40,000 million by
Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. through the issuing of 40,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HUF 1
each.

At 31 December 2011 the fully paid share capital consisted of 145,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HUF 1 each.

There were no significant incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares
2012 and 2011.
Reserves

The Bank has two statutory reserves, a capital reserve and a general reserve.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve contains the shareholders total capital contributions that connecting to
the issue of new shares. The difference between the face value of the new shares and
the paid capital contribution is recognised in the capital reserve.

General reserve

Under section 75 of Act No. CXII of 1996, an amount equal to 10% of net profit after tax
as per the Bank’s Hungarian statutory accounts must be transferred to a non-
distributable general reserve. This general reserve may be created by credit institutions
only from taxed profits. Since there is a loss in the current financial year, the general
reserve must be released insofar as to cover any such losses, but is not to exceed the
amount set aside in the general reserve. As the Bank realised losses in its Statutory
Financial Statements for 2011 the full amount of HUF 6,640 million was used.

Commitments and contingencies

The Bank had the following commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2012 {million HUF)

Gross amount Provision Net amount
Guarantees 46,133 (2,895) 43,238
Letters of credit 5,394 (53) 5,341
Total financial guarantees 51,527 {(2,948) 48,579
Loans and overdraft facilities not
disbursed 166,424 (3,873 162,451
Total 217,951 {6,921} 211,630

Bank of INTESA [7] SANPAOLO
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(33) Commitments and contingencies (continued)

2011 (million HUF)

Gross amount Provision Net amount
Guarantees 72,988 (2,796) 70,192
Letters of credit 7,833 (72) 7,761
Total financial guarantees 80,821 (2,868) 77,953
Loans and overdraft facilities not
disbursed 160,492 (846) 159,646
Total 241,313 (3,714) 237,599

Letters of credit, guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the Bank to
make payments on behalf of customers contingent upon the failure of the customers to
perform under the terms of contract. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the
same credit risk as loans. Credit guarantees can be in the form of bills of exchange or
in the form of irrevocable letters of credit, guarantees, and endorsement liabilities from

bills rediscounted.

Commitment to extend credit represents contractual commitments to make loans and
revolving credits. Commitments generally have fixed expiry dates, or other termination

clauses.

The amount of long term commitments with maturity over one year is HUF 25.536

million as at 31 December 2012.

The amount of the securities in custody is HUF 841,245 million at 31 December 2012

and HUF 873,263 million in 2011, respectively.

53

Bank of INTES [+

SANPAOLO



G

9¢2'62 114" 892°1Z1L'2 0S9°Z1L §89°6/1 , £ev'eee’lL ‘ _ieoy
LeL €00°L 89162 - 89262 - Siusuingsu sageausp Buibipay jejo
Lel €00} 89.°62 - 89.'62 - sdems ojeJ jsausiy)

SOAIJBALISD 8jkJ JSas8jU|
Sjuswnisul saeAlsp Buibpay

€08'0Z 868 £85°€90°) - iy 601L°090°L Sjuswinisul aaneauap Buipes; jejo g
L 4 9¢ - - 9¢ SaAljeAllep xapuj pue Aynby
£08'0Z 968 LPS'e90°L - viv'e €20°L90°L iejolgng
Gee (0] %4 Sve'C - - SHe'e suondo ebueyoxe ubwio
116'8L Gop'lL 2ey'ssy - - 2ZY'6Sh sdems sjes 1sausjul Aouaunn
Gee'lL 719 ¥68°'G9G - SOL'L 68/ 795 sdems Aousiung
99¢ 986 988°6¢ - 69¢°L L18'8¢e $10B4U0D BbueyOXe pleMIO
SaAjjeAlsp Asussing
1042 SLZ'8 LL9'820°L 05921 ehv'eyl v€T 198 jeiogng
816/ Gel'l SLe'09y 059°/1 ery'evl 222’662 sdems sje. jsaiaiu]
£8l 06t 201995 - - 201'896 sjusWesIbe sjes piemio.

SBAIJBALIGD Bk JSa1aIU]

] ___Sjuswiniysui aaeausp Buipes |
Aupgenr ljossy jejol sieak g ueyj aiop slesk g pue |, usamiag Jeak | uey; sso ’ A coﬂ Eb ;
enjeadiey 411 Bujurewas ypm junowe [euonop ANH uoy

- {SU P8I0 B} Jou YSI Jevle W B Jsyjiau
JO SABOIpULl B18 pue pus Jeak sy} Je Bulpueisino suonoesuey 40 BWNIOA B} 81edIpUl SJUNOWE JRUOIOU 8U | ‘painseaw sle SBAlBALIBD JO anjea ay)
ul sebueyo yoym uodn siseq sy si pue xapuj Jo O}ep doudiajel Jasse Buihliepun s .aARBALISD € JO Junowe 8y} st 'ss046 papiooal ‘JUNowe [euonou oy |

‘Sjunowe jeuonou sy} yum Jayyaboy ‘senijiqel| Jo siesse se POPIOOSI "SjUBWINIISUL [BIOUBLY BABALBD JO SBN[EA JiBy BYl SMoUs ajqe) oy |

2102 Jaquisdaq L¢ e se sjuswinigsul [eioueuyy BAIEALB(]

sjuswinisuj [eidueury aaeauaq (e pe)

TLOT 12quidass(] [¢ popus aesak ay 10)

SIUSUISIEIG [BIOUEBUL] POJEPIOSUO)) 3Y} 0} S3JON
S3LIBIPISYNS pue
PYIMNVY dID

ANVE 41D




‘Aleanoadsal | Loz 18qWadaQ |¢ 1 se uoljiw g} 4nH Jo ureb jeu pue z10z BauWLos(] Lo e se
Uoii €€ 4NH 03 pajunowe sysii pabpay auyy 0} e|qeingLye sway pabpsy uo uieb jau |ejo) Byl "AjpAnosdsal | |0z Bquieseq L¢ Je se uoliw 68| 4MH
4O SSO| J8U e pue juswnusul BuiBpsy sy uo uoliw /G 4NH 40 ssoj 18U e pasiuboos. dnous ayy Z10z Bquisde Lg pepus tesk oy 104 ‘sysodsp pue
S8ILIN0SS PaNss! ‘S1oWOISNO 0) S8oUBAPE pue UBO| 8pnjout ysiI sjeJ jsausur Joy pabpay Sjuswinasul [eroueul sy "seles jseie)ul pue sajel saburyoxe u
SjusLwisArow syy 0} anp sanijigel| [eloueuly pue Sjesse |eloueul Jo anjen Jre) sy} ur sebueyd Jsurebe } 10e104d 0} dnou ey} Aq pesn ale sabpay anjen e

“dnoug sy jo ssoj Jo 1jod sy uo oeduwl weoniubls e arey Aew joenU0D BANBALBD B
Bulkpepun xspur Jo ajes ‘Josse SU} JO aNjeA sy} Ul JusWBAOW jleLs AiBAnees v "ajneioA Aion U9lo aJe pue sbelens| jo saiBap ybiy e sajoau Apusnbauyy
SlUBWINASUl 8SBY)} IBASMOH UONEISPISUOD JO Iajsuel ou Jo s yim sasiwoud Jo abueyoxe jenmnw e Ajuo uondeoul Jiay) e aAjoAUl UBHO SaAlBALB(]

{ponunuos) Sjuswinsuj jeroueuly saeAua (e B

THOT 19qudds ¢ popus avak ay) 10j

SHUSWNEIG [BIDURULY PIIEPHOSUO)) 3Y) 0] 530N
SILIBIpISqNS pue
PYIMNVI 41D

JANVE 1D




99

6¥6°'SE rizolL 850695 G1862 chi'vpe 0£1'662'2 10

ocL 85l vei'sy - vez'oz 068'v2 sjuswniisul aaeausp Buibpey &Sch
oci 861 vZL'Gy - veeoz 068've sdems o1e. 1s8101U]

sjuswiniisul saeausp Buibpey

618'6¢ 95091 v€6°€25°2 §18'6Z 618'c22 ovZ'vLiz'Z Sjuawnisul sajeausp Buipesy jejo )

L €l €99 - - €99 SaAljeAlap Xapul pue Ajnbyg

00162 9v9'6 Sz9TTY'L - 606°¢ SLL8LYL lejogng
986 285 90 - vz8'lL 288l suondo aBueyoxe ubisio-
v9G°LL 658°L Syy'Leh - - Sy iEy sdems ajed }ssueiul Aousing
18201 €9e'y 106'026 - - 106'026 sdems Aousiing
699 Zy8'c €609 - 680z 881'8G $10BAUO0D SBUBLOXS pIEMIO]

S3AlRALSD Aduauny

8L.'9 16€°9 9v9'001°4 §18'62 0.6'612 19858 [Erogng
09¢°9 ¥58'G 6.8°29/ gL8'se 0.6'612 ¥60°L18 sdems ojeJ 1sauaiu]
8G¢ £vs FASYAVAS - - 19/°2€€ sjuewes.be syel piemio

SOAIJRALIOP B)ed }S84aIU]

sjuswnisut sageAuap Buipes |

Aypqern jossy jejo} sieoh g ueyj alop sieak g pue | ussmiag 1eof | uey] sson N o

(4NH uotiw)

anjea Jje4 aJ1] Bujurewsas yym junowe jeuonon i , -

LL0Z 43qWeds( L¢ JB SE SJUSINSUL [RIDUBLIY SANBALISQ

(psnunuoo) sjuswnisul [eroueUY SARBALIS( (g pg)

SOLIRIPISqNS puw
‘PYIIINVY 41D

TLOT 19quIadd(] [¢ Papua 183k 3y} 10)

SIUBWILIG [RIDURUL] PIIEPIOSUO)) 1} 0] S310N]

ANVE 41D




oL Y61 ov8'sgl Zro's (zz9'sz) 162'26 (re9'LyL) A% AVASTA (Gve'121) def Buioudai Jop
oLe'ee oLe'ee - - - - - - sauqe) Jeyo
6C0 - - - cL0 - 660 - SOJL JSUBIU BMJOBYT
929°69 - - - Gv.l'8 062°¢r Leiel - qep peleuplogng
89'¢ - - L6t 6t 989 90t - S8JRL JSaIB)ul BAIDSYY
. B B . . . ; SONINDSS
89108 Sv8'6¢ €6E'L1 §igze 154 Penss| Woy senijge
Sty - - 899 009 g80¢ £eq ere Sojel Jsadsiur oA0BYS
£18282°1L - - 8.1'0S 119691 £62'6¢e¢ £09'¢62 86L'CEy SI8WOISND Wioy) sysods()
9¢€Z'62 - - 9G 9ore 88¢°gL 0ge'8 - SoRiqel jerouruy aABALS(]
6870 - - 6Lt 660 850 902 980 Sejed Jsaraur eAoa
LLLSEY - - 197 819'G/ L12'e8z 218°0. 280'¢ $fuBg woy sysodagg
sanigery
TANA]) Gze'igl - - - - - - SI9SSE IS0
629 - - 9L¢ 9r'G 66 £€¢G - Sojed Jsalsjul arjoays
98'v€T z18'l - ove's FARY 006°'Lz 68v°60¢ slususaAUl BlOUBLY Y
£qt - geg 0z'8 9g'q g9t rbb PGl SOJe 1SaUB Ul aAIBY
Ly e } . . . . . . SIBUIOEND
286 L1G'L YXA T A Y £09°'66¢ 90G vv<& L0B'GEE Ly6' 922 0} SOOUBADE pUE SUBO
9L1'zL - - L e’y 8Zy's Svv'e - S}esse [elouBLY BAIBALS(]
rG - 609 626G 686G 8g¢G 186 - S8Jed JSeusul arloay=
. . . . . ; $s0f Jo woud ybnoay
68292 172 G9/ 66G°L 786'G 09G'L 90¢'9l anjeA ey je sjesse ferueu;
£ee - - - - 8L'¢ 8¢ o g S8R IS84D]U BADEY
869°401 - - - - 68 1698 gLe'et SMUBQG WOl angy
cot - - - - - - GG $O1BI JSOIBIU SAJDEY T
. . ~ ) } ; _ . MUBG [RIUSD Yim
vio'ee 8€6'6 9L0°€¢ SIUNOOOR JUBLIND PUB YSEL)
EYTSEYS sieak g slesh ¢ Jeak | SUUOW ¢ Juow | YN —
jej0) 1S8J8JUI-UON JBAO 0] | WoJ4 0} syjuow ¢ 0} | woid Jepun Aj@reipewiwy sjessy

ajep Ajunjew Jo Buioudai [enjoeuod jo Jaijdes Aq L0z Jaquiesaq Lg 1e Saiijiqel] pue sjesse jo Junowe Buikieny (e G

TI0T 19quIsda(] [¢ PpIpua deaA 3y 10j
SIUSWIILIG [RIDURUL] PIIEPIOSUO) 34} 0) $3J0N

SILIBIPISqNS pug
PYI3INVA 91D

JANVE 41D



8%

LL'vpe £v5'€0Z 086'z2 (628'S) LET' YT (v0E'v¥2) 8Lz'9L1 {(vg9'68) deb Burouda jap
€9¥°'9¢ €9y'9¢ - - - - - - SaIgel BUy
9z¢ - - - 20¢C - 8ee - S8jel Jsausjul 808y
Liy'ez - - - 25¢'6 - 6501 - 198p pareupIogng
§e'q - - 0g's £8°¢ PP'9 0L'9 - S8JBJ JSeUn)UI 8108
‘ ) ; . . . . ) SBNUNONS
G16°40) 98C'9L 192°9¢ VASYAN 474 L9l Ll penss| wod sanigen
(o 4 - 6.°¢ 9€'9 Ly G6'g 89°¢ Loz SOIRI ISBIBJUI BADBY
618'v9L’L - G 0LG'z¢ Piv'LLL 060°'26¢ Li6'06¢ 688'9zY SIBLUOISND WCY slisoda(]
676'GE - - Zse Gli'e 959'02 9911 = senliqel ouBUY SAlBALIB(]
60¢ - - 8z¢ gL't 912 e PZE S8JeI jsadsjul vAo8)Y
PrO'LLL - - 044 128’8 096°0vv ¥62'981 664 SHuBY wioy spsodag
sagiger
£9e'0ez €9€'0¢Z - - - - - - SBSSE IBU0
cz8 - - 006 icg .6 LLg - SOJRI JS8IBIUI 81110BYH
LLE'0S1 ¥8 - VASTA S16°¢ 69G'. 98y vel - sjusUIsBAUl RIoURULY
06t - Lb'g £€9 0L'9 9£¢G g8t (! §8]B. JS848JUI BANOBYY
o ppa B . . . . . . SIDWOIEND
€eSL06°L ¥85°0¢ 8ly'¢y 1G6'9L Lov'2€9 yeEG'ZEY GeeLee 0} S8OUBADE pUE SUBO|
14741 - - 144 LY’ ze8'v 2ie's - S]9SSE [BIDUBUY DARALIS(
68 - £L6 88 £8°6 PE6 '8 - S8JRI JS8IBJU BAOSYY
. . . ; $s01 40 youd ybnoayy
$S6°L 698 Loy'z 188 vl'e 902 PGl anjeA ey Je s1esse feruel)
oLt - - - - gg’L Ger £€0 S84 Jsadajul sAJo8yY
826°LL1 - - - - 199°'¢ £26'451 1228 SHUB(Q WOy ong
N4 - - - - - - o0/ $81R4 S84 8AD8YT
. . B ) ) ) ) e SUBQ [BHUSD Yim
690 0¥ v66'8 §L0'1€ SJUNOOOR JUBLNT PUB yser)
SAIJISUDS SiB9A sieak leok syjuotl Liuow BANISUSS-B]RI
10 1S9I9jUI~UON o E:YYe) GO} wol4 | ojpsyuow g £ 0} | Wwol4 | Jepun Apleipswiw| ; sjessy

ajep Ajunjew o Bujdudal jenjoru09 Jo oijies Aq b10z 19qwiasaq ¢ e sanljiqel| pue sjasse Jo jJunowe Buihies (q -gg)
T10T 42quada(] [¢ Papud 1Bak sy 10)
SJUSWIRIELG [EIDUBULY PIIRPIOSUO)) 31} 0] SAJON

SaLIRIpISqNS pug
‘PYVIBINVA 41D

ANVE DD



6G

voe'veL £20°0¢ ___88lege _ lesi'sz) N (5 7% 19) (8vs'es) L LRV
YZ6'vZ6°L 162662 Zvz'soe Zys'yee 0v9'g9¢ 01199 saliqer o]
929'69 cev'zs 80L'¢cl 9 A 4 pajeuplogng
L04'9 - 104°9 - - - SUOISIAG
G8'L1 - z66°g G9G'9 - 8ie'e safigel sy
veL's - veL'8 - - - ssnijige) xe |
891°08 - 868'05 9¢ez've 9z'0s 8 SBOUNDBS PBNSS| LWOY Senjige:
€18'282°L 1€2'eS1 088'95 SviLL bov'LLe 067'629 SIBWOISNY Wl sysodag)
9ez'6e 9¢9'L L89'c 916'z 617Gl Les's Selligel [eoueLy saeALS
VA% %4 10188 8vZ'ole 72062 ¥09'9/ vri'ee SHUBG L0 spsodsq]
Saniger
88Z'6lLL' VyZv'664 0£0°86S 09¢'60Z 616701 666109 Sle8sy |ej0 |
8G9°GS1 0/6°6¢ 889Gl 1 - - - seluedoud passessodal ‘Juswdinba
pue jueid *Apedosd ‘siesse sjqibueiug
2069 - 608 09¢’L - eel'l slasse JBy0
soe'ce - soge‘ce - - - $19888 xe |
09v'L - - 09¥°L - - BIES 0] pIBY SIOSSE JUBLING-UON
y98'veT 18y Lvy'g 19¢ 6L Le 68Y'60Z Sjusunsesul BoUeULY
286'115°L L1€'96G 8LSZvp 9€G°'/61 LSv'64 091°2v2 SIBUWOISND 0] SEOUBADE PUR SUBG™
9lLi‘zL 06t LE9's 2692 6S0°2 Pyl SIOSSE [BIOUBUY BANRALB(]
682°0¢ )41 €91 166G 0961 90¢'9L 880} JO
woud ybBnoayy enjea ey je sjesse enueU 4
869°201 - - - 68 609'201 Hjuey wWoyy eng
vio'ee - - - - yL0'ee SHUBG Ulim SIUNODDR JUSLIND pue ysen
. S . Slosey

T =7 S e SRS § . 1.

153101} sieah g Jang 0} | woiy SUUOW & WOl 0} | wouj yiuow | depupn

8IOM Z10¢ J8quisda( L¢ 1e se senyiqel pue sjesse sXjueg sy} jo ejyod Ajumew ay |

sjep fyunjew Aq samijiqel) pue syesse J0 Junowe Buifiien (e "gg)

T10T 19quda( [¢ papua aeak oy oy

SHIDWIELG [EDUBULY PAIEPIOSUO)) 3Y) 0] $aj0N
SILIBIPISqNS puw
PYIJINVA d1D

ANV 41D




09

LiL'vre £1Z°118 8.9°¢1Z g9i‘sg (ogezov) (sio‘col) uonisod jaN
19z'08z°z $95°952 L£8'€28 A 414 ceL'sey 685'GLL sannger oy
Liv'ee Pee'6 L0011 81l - 8G 1qap pejeupiogng
89¢€°G - 89¢'g - - - SUOISIAGL
112'2¢ - - 20€'84 - G6'¢ sagmael By
8188 - 818'g - - - senigel xe |
G/6'201 - v8'Le 889°'c9 LEV'9L 8 SORUN0BS PBNSS| w0y soilige:
618'v9¢°L Lov'eel 919'9¥ 6S6°0Z1 Lz0'eee 962'ves SIBWOISNo woy sysoday
6V6'GE 126 1€9°¢ 99¢'z Zro'|lL YNAZ) SeNigey fesueuy saeale(
Pro'LLL Zv8'90L SSS°LLY 606°¢E L20'11 Le'og sSHueq wod; sysodeg
sanger
z.Le'v28'T L11°19L S15°282 20e'p92 £08°Z8 046°119 sjossy [Bjo ]
0€8°081 ger'ey LoviiEL - - - seiuadoid pessessoda ‘Juswdinbe
pue yued ‘Ausdoud ‘sosse ajqibueyuy
LP0'6 - - S¥.'S - 962'c SI9SSE 1OUI0
Lve'6s - LPZ'6g - - - S198SR XB |
1621 - - 162 - - O[es JOJ Dloy SJasse JuaLno-UoN
L1E'0G1 78 G/G's 966°2 696/ 18v'veL SJUBUSBAUL [RIDUR U
€€5'106°L Geo'Les 1ATWASL] £61'Gve 96v'L . G69°0LE SIBUWOISNO 0} S8DUBADE DUB SUBOT
12741 69¢ 166 yv6'e zes'e 8Lv'y S}esse |eiduBuYy BABALB(]
¥56°'L 9962 181y (5747 90¢ 21" 880]
10 youd ybnouyy enjea sey je sjesse jBoueUd
826411 - - LE1'S - 162241 SHUB( W) ang)
690°0¥ - - - - 69001 SHUBQ LlIm SJUNODOR JUBLIND pue ysen
sjessy
sieah g leaA | 01 syuow ¢
€10} sieah G Jong 0} | woiy SUILOW ¢ Woly o} | woig Hiuow | dspun

8JoM | | 0Z J8quieds( L¢ 1e se sailiiigel| pue siesse sAjueg 8y} jo syoud Ajumew ay |

ajep Aunjew Aq senijiqer pue sjasse jo junowe Bujliien (q -gg)

SOLIBIPISqNS pug
PYIDINVY dID

TIOT 13quidda(] J¢ papua Jeak ayy 40)

SHUSWNBIS [COURUL] PAJEPIOSUO.) Y} 0] SIJ0N




19

igpat ‘ ¢ ‘ ‘ ‘ sanigery
££5°86¢°2 09¢'pie V.I0'L1S ve8ove 685 '¢cev 819°C414 [e1oukUY pajunoasipun jejo |
298'9z 06601 9eeGl oSty - 98 1g8p psieuipiogng
YLl - L06'0¢ L5169 ZLl'gl 8 SBNLNOBS PBNss| WoJy saljiqer
Zrs'09vL 056641 69¢'/8 §6/l'62L 8/8°/¢¢ 065'Ge. SIBWOISND Wodj sysodag
676'GE 126 1£9°¢ 99z’ Zr9'gl LiY0L sjuswnAsul eANeALIB(
969°09/ g6v'ceL GZ8'6ey 906°CY 1G6°8L1 GLg'oe SHUBQ Wiody susodac]
satliger
I siesh g 1eaA | sUyjuow ¢ iuow
el sleah G A 0} | woiq 0} syuow ¢ 0} | wouy L Jopun L0z
Wo.4
b o ‘ ‘ . ‘ ¢ saijqey
S09'v20°C 6vL9ve lev'66¢ L80°Gve 186'¢ice LOV'659 [EIoUBUYY pajuNoasIpun (ejo
z8¢'e8 12885 08¢'ce 6161 £ov £e 19op pereuipiogng
69.°/8 - 162'SS 0v8'ge ¥29'G 8 S8NlNJ8s Panss| Wo.y sanijiqer
0/6°C.€°L 6€6'/81 128'96 ¥9.°281 88€'G/e Z50°'0€9 SiBwWoisno woyy sysodaq]
9ge'ee 929°'L 189°¢ 9162 z6v'G1L L2S's Sjuswinasul aajeALBQ
8ve'LGY 15€'86 eseiee 866°0¢ ¥66'9. 187°¢¢ S)ueq woly sysodeq
seniqery
sieoh g 1e9f | syuow ¢ uow |
el siesk G Janp 01 | Woiq 0} mww_mg oy 0} | wouy 18pun ZL07

‘Ajejeipsww usaib 8q 0] a1em 8oR0U 4l Se pajeay} sie 920U 0} 198GNS Jou BJE Yoiym Sjuewhedsy “lequisoac] ¢ je se

- BLUODUI ISBIBIUL 2NNy UM JaUeB0)} — SMOJ) YseD [EMOBUOD $S0.6 saniliqe| eoueuy s dnosy sy iyoud Ajumew ey esuewwns ajge) Buimojjoy sy

SenuNew renjoenuod Bujutews: Aq smoyy yses [en3oesuos ssoub senijiger jeroueuy jo sisfjeuy (z¢)

T10T 12quada( [¢ papus reak oy doj

SHISWIEIS [BIDUBULY POIEPIOSUO,) 31} 0 S3j0N
SaLIBIpISqnsS pue
PYTINVL dID

ANVE 41D




CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Part D — Additional Information

(38)

(a)

Related Party Transactions
Companies (Intesa Sanpaolo Group)

For the purpose of the financial statements, related parties include all the enterprises
that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are controlled
by, or are under common control with the reporting enterprise (this includes parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries), associated companies and key management
personnel.

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A /ltaly, Torino/ (parent) is regarded as a related party that has
significant control over the Bank.

The Group also has entered into several transactions with companies controlled by
Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

All transactions with companies in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are conducted at market
rates. Balances and commitments at 31 December 2012 constitute 0.8% of total assets
and 16.7% of total liabilities, and are set out below.

2012
(million HUF) Parent ISP Group  Subsidiaries Total
___Companies e
Assets
Cash and current 6,818 216 57,631 64,665
accounts
Loans and advances to
customers / Due from 6,969 932 413,124 421,025
banks
Financial investments 22 - - 22
Derivative financial 2168 257 42 2.467
assets
Financial asset at fair
value through profit or - - 975 975
loss
Other assets 140 3 1,554 1,697
Liabilities
Current accounis 2 62 408,819 408,883
Deposits from 150,886 131,186 71,881 353,953
customers / banks
Subordinated debt 43,750 21,876 - 65,626
Derivative financial 3,975 1,339 42 5,356
liabilities
Liabilities from issued
securities - - 875 g75
Other liabilities - - 1,304 1,304
Commitments
Guarantees - 14 215 229
Loan commitments - - 236,413 236,413
interest rate derivatives 414,833 48,908 - 463,741
Currency derivatives 136,843 855 3,330 141,028
Interest expenses, net (2,574) (6,720) (197) (9,491)
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CIB BANK
CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(38) Related Party Transactions (continued)
(million HUF) Parent ISP Group Subsidiaries Total
oo Companes _
Assets
Cash and current 11,870 232 55,130 67,232
accounts
Loans and advances to
customers / Due from 20,122 251 423,321 443,694
banks
Fair value of 1,466 557 96 2,119
derivatives
Financial asset at fair
value through profit or - - 500 500
loss
Other assets 144 3 2,249 2,396
Liabilities
Current accounts 685 171 69,643 70,499
Deposits from 221,388 328,320 414,146 963,854
customers / banks
Subordinated debt - 23,411 - 23,411
Derivative financial 667 590 96 1,353
liabilities
Liabilities from issued
securities - - 500 500
Other liabilities - - 2,249 2,249
Commitments
Guarantees - 14 124 138
Loan commitments - - 202,228 202,228
Interest rate 53,367 107,284 - 160,651
derivatives
Currency derivatives 113,819 1,063 4,004 118,886
Interest expenses, net (2,916) (9,132) (1,241) (13,289)
The Group has significant transactions with the following ISP Group members:
+  BANCA FIDEURAM S.PA.
¢ PRIVREDNA BANKA ZAGREB D.D.
=  VSEOBECNA UVEROVA BANKA AS
e BANCA IMI SPA
¢ INTESA SANPACLO ROMANIA S A
(b) Key management personnel

The key management personnel, who have authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, are the members of the Bank's
Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and Management Committee. They receive

conditions generally provided to the employees of the CIB Group.

63



CIB BANK 1.td.
and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(38) Related Party Transactions (continued)

Members of the Bank’s Board of Directors at 31 December 2012

Dr. Suranyi Gyérgy (chairman) - Intesa Sanpaolo Group
Fabrizio Centrone (deputy chairman) — Intesa Sanpaolo Group
Giampiero Trevisan - Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Paolo Sarcinelli - Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Eduardo Bombieri — CIB Bank Ltd.

Jonathan Charles Locke — CIB Bank Ltd.

dr. Gabor Kiraly — CIB Bank Ltd.

Gabor Plank - CIB Bank Ltd.

Members of the Bank’s Supervisory Board as at 31 December 2012

Ilvan Sramko (chairman) - Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Massimo Malagoli (deputy chairman) - Intesa Sanpaolo Group
Prof. Avv. Emilio Tosi — Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Giorgio Spriano - Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Antonio Furesi - Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Christophe Velle — Intesa Sanpaolo Group

Dr. Sandor Toth - CIB Bank Ltd.

Maria Tolgyesi — CIB Bank Ltd.

Dr. Zoltan Hodosi —~ CIB Bank Ltd.

Members of the Bank’s Management Committee as at 31 December 2012:

Fabrizio Centrone (CEO) - CIB Bank Ltd.
Eduardo Bombieri (deputy CEQ) - CIB Bank Ltd.
dr. Kiraly Gabor (deputy CEO) - CIB Bank Ltd.
Plank Gabor (deputy CEO) - CIB Bank Ltd.
Jonathan Charles Locke (deputy CEO) — CIB Bank Ltd.
Giorgio Gavioli — CIB Bank Ltd.

Magdolna Juridesz — CIB Bank Ltd.

Boglarka Készegi — CIB Bank Ltd.

Zsuzsanna Németh — CIB Bank Ltd.

Andrea Weéber — CIB Bank Ltd.

Krisztian Horvath — CIB Bank Lid.

David Csont - CIB Bank Ltd.

Alessio Cioni - CIB Bank Ltd.

Csongor Németh — CIB Bank Ltd.

Dr. Aron Vitalyos — CIB Bank Ltd.

Zoltan Téth — CIB Bank Ltd.

Pavol Tavac - CIB Bank Ltd.

Zoltan Csordas — CIB Bank Ltd.

Attila Bukovszki — CIB Bank Ltd.
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(38) Related Party Transactions (continued)

(39)

e (mllho nHUF) e
2012 2011
Assets
Current accounts 1 4
Loan 95 120
Liabilities
Current accounts 281 267
Deposits 151 63
Commitments
Loans and overdraft facilities not disbursed 13 14
Compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits 1,108 1,689

There were changes and extension in th

2012 and 2011.

Average balances

Averages carrying amounts and avera
in the table below. The amounts are
balances for trading instruments and
average interest rates disclosed are th
bearing financial instruments for the rep

e Group’s key management members during

ge interest rates (where appropriate) are set out
calculated by using a simple average of daily
monthly balances for other instruments. The
e weighted average effective yields of interest-
orting period.

2012 2011
(million HUF) Avergge Average Avergge Average
carrying interest carrying interest
amount rate (%) amount rate (%)
Financial assets
Cash and current accounts
with central bank 88,962 4.31 84,593 2.90
Due from banks and
subordinated loans 83,455 2.5 67,713 2.64
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 20,825 585 16,482 5.30
Loans and advances to
customers 1,895,160 4.79 2,228,382 513
Financial investments 258,829 6.68 155,134 6.16
Other assets 289,380 - 245 200 -
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 566,651 1.58 717,454 1.92
Deposits from customers 1,342,287 4.88 1,339,881 3.65
Liabilities from issued
securities 89,968 5.58 113,771 551
Subordinated debt 23,466 1.70 30,946 2.00
Other liabilities 392,628 - 345 863 -

65



| CIB BANK

CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(40)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The following tables comprise the book value and the fair value of those financial
assets and liabilities, which are not presented at fair value in the Statement of Financial

Position.
Exposed to cash flow Exposed to fair
31 December 2012 risk value risk
(million HUF) Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Due from banks 13,918 13,918 93,780 93,775
Loans and advances to customers 1,452,869 1,493,657 65,113 64,504
Financial investments —
Held-to-maturity 317 307 5,345 5,463
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 337,177 337,523 96,594 96,635
Deposits from customers 606,336 620,377 676,477 680,115
Subordinated debt 65,626 67,305 - -
Liabilities from issued securities 34,798 34,803 45,370 45 817
Exposed to cash flow Exposed to fair
31 December 2011 risk value risk
(million HUF) Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Due from banks 21,491 21,529 156,437 156,425
Loans and advances to customers 1,834,783 1,830,031 66,750 69,024
Financial investments —
Held-to-maturity 318 305 5,256 5,106
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 557,991 558,882 153,653 154,007
Deposits from customers 611,088 615,050 753,731 753,102
Subordinated debt 23,411 23,508 - -
Liabilities from issued securities 38,982 39,007 68,993 68,334

The methods of the fair value calculations are detailed in the following paragraphs:

The estimated fair value of due from banks and loans and advances to customers is
based on the discounted amount of the estimated future cash flows.

In the case of financial investments — Held-to-maturity and fiabilities from issued
securities are measured with the actual market price or by applying broker price
quotations.

Deposits from banks and customers have been estimated using discounted cash flows.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:
s Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
¢ Level 2: Other technigques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
= Level 3! techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries

(40)

(41)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by

level of the fair value hierarchy:

31 December 2012
Financial assets

‘Level1  Level2 Level3  Total

Derivative financial assets - 12,116 - 12,116
Flngncual assets at fair value through 9279 17.010 ) 26,289
profit or loss

fsrlar;:n(:lal investments - Available-for- 11,796 217,406 - 229202
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities - 29,236 - 29,236
‘31 December 2011 ‘Level1  Level2 Level3 Total
Financial assets

Derivative financial assets - 16,214 - 16,214
Fmanmal assets at fair value through 7.625 329 ) 7.954
profit or loss

l;r'}sncnal investments - Available-for- 21.809 122,928 - 144,737
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities - 35,949 - 35,949

During the reporting period ending 31 D
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fa

Level 3 fair value measurement.

Cash and cash equivalents

ecember 2012 and 2011 there were no
ir value measurements or any transfers into

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprises the
following balances with less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash and current account with central bank (Note 15)

Due from banks (Note 16)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 17}

Financial investments (Note 21)
Total

(million HUF)
2012 2011
—S3014 15,065
107,698 172,791

166 144
183,878 118,098
324,756 331,102
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CIB BANK Ltd.
and subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

(42)  Reclassification based on IAS 39

Following the amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(issued in October 2008 and effective from 1 July 2008) the Group reclassified
municipal bonds from Available-for-sale category toward Loan and advances to
customers with the carrying value of HUF 61 ,185 million. The transfer value was the fair
value at 30 September 2009 on reclassification date. The nominal value of the bonds
was HUF 62,759 million on reclassification date. The average effective margin of the
bonds is 1.1%.

The amount of Available-for-sale reserve was HUF (1,574) million at the reclassification
date which will be amortised until maturity. It was determined by the Group that the
market for these assets is no longer active and the Group no longer intends to trade.
The management also considered the credit risk of these assets as significant for
measurement purposes. This reclassification has only been performed where the
Group, at the reclassification date, has the clear intention and ability to hold the
financial asset until maturity.

The fair value of the bonds would be HUF 49,304 million and thus the valuation loss
would be HUF 11,881 million as at 31 December 2012. The fair value of the bonds
would be HUF 53,586 million and thus the valuation loss would be HUF 7,599 million as
at 31 December 2011 respectively if the Group had not reclassified it from the
Available-for-sale to Loan and advances to customers’ category. The nominal value of
the bonds was HUF 52,179 million as at 31 December 2012 and HUF 56,762 million as
at 31 December 2011 respectively.

The total estimated cash inflow till 2020 on the bond amounts to HUF 60,241 million.

(43)  Business combinations and transactions under common control
Business combinations and transactions under common control in 2012

CIB Real Ltd. merged with Recovery Ltd. such that the merging companies ceased to
exist with the effect of the merger and the sole legal successor of the merged entities is
Recovery Zrt. The last day of the existence of the merging companies was 31
December 2011. The effective date of the merge was 1 January 2012.

In December 2012 the Bank acquired 100% ownership in CIB Faktor Ltd. and ciB
Insurance Broker Ltd. as a transaction under common control,

Business combinations and transactions under common control in 2011

On 1 January 2011 CIB Support Ltd merged into CIB Bank Lid. leaving CIB Bank Lid
as the legal successor of CIB Support Ltd.

CIB Credit Lid., CIB Property Ltd. and CIB Residential Property Ltd. merged into CIB
Leasing Ltd. such that the merging companies ceased to exist with the effect of the
merger and the sole legal successor of the merged entities is CIB Leasing Ltd. The last
day of the existence of the merging companies was 31 December 2010. The effective
date of the merge was 1 January 2011. CIB Leasing Holding Ltd. acquired 98.1569% of
the shares of the legal successor.
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(43)

(44)

(45)

Business combinations and transactions under common control (continued)

CIL Buda Square Ltd. and Obuda Dunapart Ltd. merged into Recovery Ltd. such that
the merging companies ceased to exist with the effect of the merger and the sole legal
successor of the merged is Recovery Ltd. The last day of the existence of the merging
companies was 31 December 2010. The effective date of the merge was 1 January
2011.

All mergers and demergers were presented in the Financial Statements using the
pooling of interests method both for 2012 and 2011 respectively.

Events after the reporting period

The Group sold its investment in CIB Investment Fund Management Ltd on 14 January
2013 within Intesa Sanpaolo Group to Eurizon Capital S.A.

Segment report

For management purposes the Group is organised into operating segments based on
services and products. The management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit
or loss. Income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating
segments.

The following segments could be distinguished as being separate from each other

* Retail banking and corporate banking contains banking services, private
customer current accounts, savings, deposits, investment savings products,
customer loans and mortgages, financial leasing services.

¢ Treasury and Bank segment contains trading and treasury services.

The other segment contains both the subsidiaries whose activities are not
financial and public sector.

Net banking income of other segment is due to the transfer of interest on non-interest
earning asset and liabilities classified to the other segment category.
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Part E - Information on risks

(46)

Risk management

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities, but it is carefully managed through a process
of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to prudent risk limits
and strong control. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The most significant business risks to which the Group is exposed are credit, interest
rate, liquidity and foreign exchange risks. It is also subject to operating risks.

The Board of Directors of the Bank, within the rules as established by the National
Bank of Hungary, the Hungarian Financial Supervisory Authority and Intesa Sanpaolo
S.p.A, sets risk management policies. The Management Committees of the Group
implement the execution of these policies.

The Risk Management Directorate is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk
related procedures to ensure an independent control process. Bank Treasury is
responsible for managing the Bank’s assets and liabilities and the overall financial
structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding and manages daily fiquidity of
the Bank. Activity of Treasury is supervised on a daily basis by the Market Risk
Department and strategic ALM decisions are made by ALCO.

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the internal
audit function that examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank's
compliance with the procedures. Internal audit discusses the results of all assessments
with management.

The Group has established reporting systems, which permit the continuous monitoring
of risk exposures. The risks are measured and quantified according to different
methods, both statistical and non-statistical. Each method is based on different levels of
uncertainty. The combination of methods makes it possible for the Group to assess the
behaviour of its exposure in different risk scenarios in order to capture all the aspects of
the risk. This reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and
unexpected loss, which is an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical
models.

As part of its overall risk management, the Group uses derivatives and other
instruments to manage exposures resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign
currencies, equity risks, credit risks, and any exposures arising from forecasted
transactions. The Group actively uses collaterals to reduce its credit risks.

Concentration arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities or activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration indicates the relative
sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographical location. In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk the Group

procedures focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.
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(46)

(a)

Risk management (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counter party will be unabie or unwilling to meet
a commitment that they have entered into with a member of the Group. It arises from
lending, trade finance, treasury and other activities undertaken by Group companies.
Credit risk on loans and receivables is managed by the Board of Directors through the
Credit Committee, the Regulatory Committee, the Group Risk Committee and the
Problem Asset Committee, which establish credit regulations including the approval
process, discretionary credit limits, standards for the measurement of credit exposures,
risk ratings of clients and assessments of management quality and financial
performance.

Each significant outstanding loan is reviewed at least monthly. Loans are classified
based on a point rating system, which incorporates qualitative and quantitative factors.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those
with positive fair values, as recorded in the Statement of Financial Position. Credit risk
on trading instruments is managed by the Board of Directors through the Asset-Liability
Committee. The Group maintains strict control on open net positions, i.e. the difference
between purchase and sale contracts, by both amount and term.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures
include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

The table below shows the maximum exposure (gross carrying amount without any
impairment losses) to credit risk for the component of the Statement of Financial
Position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation
through the use of master netting and collateral agreements.

(million HUF) 2012 2011
Cash and balances with central bank 33,014 40,069
Due from banks and subordinated loans 107,751 178,005
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 26,288 7,954
Derivative financial assets 12,118 16,416
Loans and advances to customers 1,832,399 2,178,053
Financial investments — Available-for-sale 229,202 144 737
Financial investments — Held-to-maturity 5,662 5,574
Other assets 4,534 7,764
Total maximum exposure 2,250,968 2,578,572
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 1,940,149 2,356,058
Financial guarantees 51,627 80,821
Commitments 166,424 160,492

The fair values of derivatives shown on the Statement of Financial Position represent
the current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in
the future as a result of the changs in values.
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(46) Risk management (continued)

The Group's loans and advances to customers before taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancement can be analysed by the following geographical

regions:
(million HUF) 2011
[taly 269
Hungary 2,119,130
Euro Zone countries 33,212
- of which PIGS countries 1,361
European but Non-Euro Zone countries 24,943
Other regions 499
Total 2,178,053

PIGS countries includes the followings: Greece, Portugal, Ireland and Spain.
An industry sector analysis of the Group’s financial assets, before taking into account

collateral held or other credit enhancements is provided in Note 16.

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk
of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of

collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

* For securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities;
s For commercial lending, mortgage charges over real estate properties,

inventory and trade receivables;

The Group also obtains guarantees from parent companies for loans to their
subsidiaries. The Group monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement and monitors the market value
of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for impairment

losses.
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(46) Risk management (continued)

The Credit quality of financial assets is ma

naged by the Group using internal credit

ratings. The table below shows the credit quality of the loans and advances to
customers based on the Group'’s credit rating system.

2012

2011

Performing Loans (million HUF) (million HUF)

A - Excellent 6,095 667
B - Stable 308,927 175,754
C - Acceptable 444,631 534,428
D - High Risk 135,850 251,907
Other 53,548 85,502
Retail 231,012 583,998
Total Performing Loans 1,180,063 1,632,256
Non-performing Loans

Corporate loans 496,620 408,457
Retail loan 155,716 137,340
Total Non-performing Loans 652,336 545,797
Tangible collateral at fair value 261,793 315,743

It is the Group's policy to maintain accurate and con
portfolio. This facilitates focused on mana

sistent risk ratings across the credit
gement of the applicable risks and the

comparison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions and
products. The attributable risk ratings are assessed and updated regularly.

The table below shows the credit

external rating system.

quality of the due from banks portfolio, based on the

CAANAA. T AsA BBBYBE  BEVEE  No ated  Tomal
B- -

2012 38,622 11,903 15,6168 36,037 5,520 107,698

2011 41666 52552 4 73944 9,762 177,928

The table below shows the aging analysis of past due but not individuaily impaired

loans by segment

o~ . L T e —
1 month 60 days 80 days 91 days

fgfse corporate 862,734 1,874 2918 210,733 1,078,259

f\{f;dngg’p"’ate 274.779 4087 2462 102,861 384,380

Retail loans 415,081 27.076 13,787 126,018 582,862

Total 1,553,494 33,237 19,167 439,612 2,045,510
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(46) Risk management (continued)

B U s s Sve— Tt
oo Amonth  60days 90 days  91days
,‘gr?se corporate 57,999 9,215 5,044 289 72547
f\é‘;dngo'porate 25.970 8,317 3.478 1,168 38,033
Retailloans 95186 17,318 .. 6689 277 79470
Total 139,155 34,850 15,211 1,734 190,950

Of the total aggregate amount of gross past due but not individually impaired loans and
advances to customers, the liquidation value of collateral that the Group held as at
31 December 2012 HUF 167,730 million and was HUF 173,536 million as at 31
December 2011, respectively.

The Group implemented ISP Group non-performing definition in September 2012,
According to the harmonized rules loans are reported as impaired if
® any payments are overdue by more than 90 days with material due amount
(Past due),
e the loan has been restructured Causing present value loss to the Bank
(Restructured),
¢ theclientis in temporary financial difficulties and its loans may not be paid back
fully (Substandard),
s the clientis insolvent (Doubtful).
These harmonized rules increased the NPL rate by 3% point. The Group addresses
impairment into two types: individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed
aflowances.

The Group determines the individually assessed allowances appropriate for each
individually significant loan and advance on an individual basis. Items considered when
determining allowance amounts include the sustainability of the counterparty’s business
plan, its ability to improve performance once a financial difficulty has arisen, its
expected dividend payout should bankruptcy ensue, its ability to recover outstanding
amounts, the availability of other financial support and the realisable value of collateral.

Collectively assessed allowances are assessed for losses on loans and advances that
are not individually significant and for individually significant loans and advances where
there is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment. The collective assessment
takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the portfolio even though
there is not yet objective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment.
Impairment losses are estimated by taking into consideration historical losses on the
portfolio. Collective keys are quarterly updated with latest portfolio movements.

{b) Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank will not be able to meet its payment

obligations due to its inability to obtain funds on the market (funding liquidity risk) or to
liquidate its assets (market liquidity risk).
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(46) Risk management (continued)

The intention of the CIB Group is to promote CIB'’s long standing philosophy of safe,
sound and conservative liquidity risk management and to give the right guidance to
ensure continuous and safe liquidity levels within the Group. The Liquidity Policy
illustrates the tasks of the various corporate functions, the rules and set of control and
management processes to ensure prudent control of liquidity risk, preventing crisis
situations. The Liquidity Policy is closely related to the Contingency Funding Plan which
is to clearly set out the strategies for addressing liquidity shortfalls in emergency
situations.

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the ratio of liquid assets to total assets where liquid
assets consists of cash, nostro balances and bonds that are categorized by the
National Bank of Hungary as eligible for its repo facility.

The liquidity ratio during the year was as follows

Co . (%)
Liquidity ratio 2012 5011
31 December 13.74 13.38
Daily average during the period 15.89 11.77
Highest 18.77 17.31
Lowest 11.56 7.24

(The liquidity of the Group depends on the Bank stand-alone liquidity the above table
includes the CiB Bank only liquidity ratios.)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2012 is presented
in Note 37.

{c) Market risk - Trading

Market risk is the risk of loss due to fluctuations in market variables such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group classifies exposures to
market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. The market risk for the trading
portfolio is managed and monitored through applying methodology that reflects the
interdependency between risk variables.

The market risk for the trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR
(Value at Risk) methodology which reflects the interdependency between risk variables.
VaR is a method used in measuring financial risk by astimating the potential negative
change in the market value of a portfolic at a given confidence level and over a
specified time horizon,

The Group uses simulation models to assess possible changes in the market value of
the trading portfolio based on historical data from previous years. The VaR models are
designed to measure market risk in a normal market environment. The models assume
that any changes occurring in the risk factors affecting the normal market environment
will follow a normal distribution. The factors of the distribution are calculated by using
exponentially weighted historical data. The use of VaR has limitation because it is
based on historical correlation and volatilities in market prices and assumes that future
price movements will follow a statistical distribution,
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Risk management (continued)

Due to the fact that VaR relies heavily on historical data to provide information and may.
not clearly predict the future changes and modifications of the risk factors, the
probability of large market moves may be underestimated if changes in risk factors fail
to align with the normal distribution assumption. VaR may also be under — or over-
estimated due to the assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship between
such factors for specific instruments. Even though positions may change throughout the
day, the VaR only represents the risk of the portfolios at the close of each business
day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 99% confidence
level.

Since VaR is an integral part of the Group’s market risk management, VaR limits have
been established for all trading operations with separate limit amounts for foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and total VaRs. Exposures are reviewed daily against
the limits by management.

(million HUF)
VAR - 2012 Foreign Interest Equity Correlation Total
exchange rate Effect
31 December 66 23 1 (17) 73
Daily average during the period 64 47 13 (34) 90
Highest 169 118 34 0 210
Lowest 12 9 1 0 22
{million HUF)
VAR - 2011 Foreign Interest Equity Correlation Total
exchange rate Effect
31 December 84 63 20 (77) 90
Daily average during the period 33 43 9 (27) 58
Highest 113 91 25 - 131
Lowest 8 22 2 - 27

(As the market risk and trading book is managed at the CIB Bank level, the table
includes the amounts on a Bank only basis.)

In addition to the VaR limits, position and stop-loss limits have been set up in line with
the internal regulations of Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

Position limits enables the monitoring of exposures real time, and as a robust
measurement technique, can be relied upon in case of error in the VaR model
Separate position limits and sub-limits are in place for foreign exchange, equity and
interest rate positions.

Stop-loss limits are designed fo control the down side movement of the profit and loss
in a particular position. Separate stop-loss limits have been established both on a
month-to-date and year-to-date horizon for the individual Treasury desks.
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(46)

(d)

Risk management (continued)
Market risk — Non-trading
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is measured by the extent to which changes in market interest rates
impact on equity and on net interest income. Gaps in the value of assets, liabilities and
off balance sheet instruments that mature or reprice during a given period generate
interest rate risk. The Group reduces this risk by matching the repricing of assets and
liabilities using pricing/maturity techniques, including the use of derivative products.

Interest rate risk is managed by the Treasury in the Group day-to-day operation
supervised by Risk Management, by the senior management and by the Parent
Company. On the tactical horizon interest risk is managed by the Asset-Liability
Committee, which proposes position and sensitivity limits, and monitors such limits to
restrict the effect of movements in interest rates on current earnings and on the value of
interest sensitive assets and liabilities. Strategic decisions are made by the Board of
Directors by determining the risk tolerance.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based on the floating
and fixed rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December
2012. The sensitivity of equity is calculated by revaluing all non-trading financial assets,
liabilities and derivatives at 31 December 2012 for the effects of the assumed changes
in interest rates. The Group uses for the sensitivity of equity calculations, among
others, the modified duration method.

(miltion HUF)
2012  Increasein Sensitivity of Sensitivity of equity
basis points netinterest 0to6 6months 1year Overb Total
ncome months  to 1 year tob years
years
HUF + 200 1,409 (74) 86 (129) (71) (188)
EUR +100 412 183 (4) (102) 42 119
UsD + 25 {13} 4 2 (3 - 3
CHF + 25 (120) 14 {87} - (2} (75)
Others + 25 - 1 - - - 1
{rmillion HUF)
2012  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity of equity
basis points netinterest 0to6 6 months 1year Over5 Total
income months 1o 1 year to b years
years
HUF (200) (1,409) 73 (89) 136 86 206
EUR {100) 38 (21} 3 79 (39) 22
ush {25} 7 (5 {2} 3 - (43
CHF (25) (13 {2} 62 - 2 62

-Others {(25) - - - - - -
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Risk management (continued)

(million HUF)
2011 Increase in Sensitivity of Sensitivity of equity
basis points netinterest 0to6 6months 1year Over5  Total
income months o 1 year to5 years
years
HUF + 200 (426) (308) (362) 175 (70) (565)
EUR +100 (432) 112 (40) (11) 51 112
usbh +25 (5) 1" - - - 11
CHF +25 (38) (13) (28) 15 (2) (28)
Others +25 - - - - - -
(miltion HUF)
2011 Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity of equity
basis points netinterest 0to6 6months 1year Over5 Total
Income months  to 1 year to5 years
years
HUF (200) 426 313 373 (182) 85 589
EUR (100) (17) (112) 40 11 (57) (118)
usD (25) (16) (11 - - - (11)
CHF (25) (4) 3 33 ) 2 31
Others (25) - - - - -

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in currency rates.

The Group has assets and liabilities, both on and off balance sheet, denominated in
various foreign currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises when the actual or forecasted
assets in a foreign currency are either greater or less than the liabilities in that currency.

Statutory limits do not permit the Bank to have gross open currency positions against
the Hungarian Forint exceeding 30% of its solvency capital at any time. it is the policy
of the Group that the Bank should only take currency positions within strictly defined
limit rules.

Statutory limits do not permit the Bank to have net currency positions mismatch
between the asset and liability side regardless of the foreign currency at more than
60% against one another based on statutory stand alone financial statements. The
management of the bank monitors this ratio on a daily basis.

The Board of Directors establishes and monitors specific regulations based on statutory
and internal limits, and the strategy approved by the Board of Directors. Adherence to
these limits, including intra-day limits, is monitored continuousty.
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(46) Risk management (continued)

The currency structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 is as follows (currency equivalents in million HUF)

2012 HUF CHF EUR UsD Other Total
Cash and current accounts

with central bank 32,016 41 714 178 65 33,014
Due from banks 69,454 377 27,171 8,365 2,331 107,698
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 25,982 ) 255 52 : 26,289
Derivative financial assets 12,116 - - - - 12,116
Loans and advances to 366,003 589,166 552,843 7,082 1988 1,517,982
customers

Financial investments —

Available-for-sale 228,355 - - - - 228,355
Financial investments

Held-to-maturity 6,509 ) ) ) ) 6,509
Non-current assets held for 1,460 ) ; ) ) 1,460
sale

Tax assets 23,305 - - - - 23,305
Other assets 6,761 45 63 33 - 6,902
Repossessed property 115,687 - - - - 115,687
Intangible assets 8,178 - - - - 8,178
Property, plant and 31,793 ) ) ) ) 31,793
equipment

Total assets 927,619 589,629 581,046 16,610 4,384 2,119,288
2012 HUF CHF EUR usbD Other Total
Deposits from banks 41,571 120,472 270,257 719 752 433,771
Der‘sygtnve financial 20236 ) . } ) 29.236
liabilities

Deposits from customers 926,488 58,592 255,507 34,665 7,561 1,282,813
Liabilities from issued

securities 54,005 - 26,163 - - 80,168
Tax liabilities 8,728 - 3 2 1 8,734
Other liabilities 12,900 88 3,847 873 167 17,875
Provisions 6,701 - - - - 8,701
Subordinated debt - - 65,626 - - 65,626
Total liabilities 1,079,629 179,152 621,403 36,259 8,481 1,924,924
Share capital 145,000 - - - - 145,000
Reserves 102,930 (1,238) - - - 101,692
Retained earmings (52,3283 - - - - {52,328}
Total equity 195,602 {1,238} - - - 194,364
Total liabilities and 1,275,231 177,914 621,403 36,259 8,481 2,119,288

equity

Net on- Statement of
Financial Position (347,612) 411,715 (40,357) (19,649) (4,097}

FX position of derivatives 374,698 (424,262) 26,740 19,669 3,155
Off-balance 158 881 1 45,861 6,046 241 211,030
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Risk management (continued)

2011 HUF CHF EUR usbD Other Total -
Total assets 918,728 858,268 710,129 29,601 7,646 2,524,372
Total

liabilities and 1,356,248 331,084 792,579 39,040 5,421 2,524,372
equity

Net on-

Statement of

Financial (437,520) 527,184 (82,450) (9,439) 2,225 -
Position

FX position

of 374,384  (460,232) 78,450 9,680 (2,282) -
derivatives

Off-balance 169,277 42 60,765 7,176 339 237,599

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of suffering losses due to inadequacy or failures
of processes, human resources and internal systems, or as a result of external events.
Operational risks include legal risk, that is, the risk of losses deriving from breach of
laws or regulations, contractual, out-of-contract responsibilities or other disputes;
strategic and reputation risks are not included.

Operational Risk and Fraud Management is responsible for the monitoring of CIB
Group's operational risk exposure and reporting it to the Board of Directors,
Supervisory Committee, Audit Committee and Management Committee (MC).
Operational Risk and Fraud Management belongs to the Risk Management
Department, which is entirely independent from the business units of the Bank, and
reports to the Chief Risk Officer.

From January 2008 both the Bank and on a consolidated level, the CIB Group
calculates capital requirement based on The Standardised Approach (TSA).

CIB has a Group Operational Risk Committee. The goal of this Committee is to provide
a framework for regular information flow among its members, hereby promoting the
measurement and management of operational risk. The Committee meets quarterly
where it reviews the Bank’s operational risk exposure and the ongoing risk mitigation
actions.

Intesa Sanpaolo Group has defined the overall operational risk management framework
by setting up a Group policy and organisational process for measuring, managing and
controlling operational risk. The Group has adopted Intesa Sanpaolo Group's
operational risk management framework, taking into consideration the local
idiosyncrasies.

There are two distinct approaches in the measurement of operational risks, quantitative
and qualitative:

The quantitative component is based on the assessment of historical data on internal
events, recorded by organisational units, checked by Operational Risk Management
and managed by a dedicated intranet based IT system. The model also takes into
consideration external events from operational risk data.

in 2004 CIB started collecting operational risk loss data of all events over HUF 50
thousand. In 2012 395 events causing HUF 1,512 million effective operational loss over
the threshold of HUF 50 thousand were recorded into the loss database, excluding the
boundary with credit losses. In 2011 445 events caused HUF 2,030 million operational
loss respectively.
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(47)

Capital and capital management

Basel Ii

The original Basel Accord was agreed in 1988 by the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision. The 1988 Accord, now referred to as Basel I, helped to strengthen the
soundness and stability of the international banking system as a result of the higher
capital ratios that it required.

Basel Il is a revision of the existing framework, which aims to make the framework
more risk sensitive and representative of modern banks' risk management practices.
There are four main components to the new framework:

s It is more sensitive to the risks that firms face: the new framework includes an
explicit measure for operational risk and includes more risk-sensitive risk
weightings against credit risk.

» |t reflects improvements in firms' risk-management practices, for example the
internal ratings-based approach (IRB) allows firms to rely to a certain extent on
their own estimates of credit risk.

¢ [t provides incentives for firms to improve their risk-management practices, with
more risk-sensitive risk weightings as firms adopt more sophisticated
approaches to risk management.

¢ The new framework aims to leave the overall level of capital held by banks
collectively broadly unchanged.

It affects banks and building societies and certain types of investment firms. The new
framework consists of three "pillars'.

» Pillar | of the new standards sets out the minimum capital requirements firms
will be required to meet for credit, market and operational risk.

s Under Pillar I, firms and supervisors have to take a view on whether a firm
should hold additional capital against risks not covered in Pillar | and must take
action accordingly.

e The aim of Pillar lll is to improve market discipline by requiring firms to publish
certain details of their risks, capital and risk management.

The new Basel Accord has been implemented in the European Union via the Capital
Requirements Directive (CRD). The CRD came into force on the 1 January 2007, and
being transposed into Hungarian law, banks applying it from 1 January 2008,
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(47) Capital and capital management (continued)

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

The second pillar of Basel [l capital framework prescribes how supervisory authorities
and banks can effectively assess the appropriate level of capital. The assessment must
cover all the risks incurred by the Group, their sensitivity to crisis scenarios, and how
they are expected to evolve in light of changes in the Group's business going forward.

The Group not only reviews its capital ratios, but it also assesses and continuously
monitors its risk bearing capacity. The Group’s primary internal measure to assess the
impact of very severe unexpected losses across the different risk types is economic
capital, which is also planned as part of the risk and capital strategy.

The Bank continuously focusing on the following risks:

Credit Risk
Risk that customers may not be able to meet their contractual payment obligations.
Credit risk includes default risk, country risk and settlement risk.

Operational Risk

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. This definition includes legal and regulatory risk, but
excludes business and reputation risk.

Market Risk

The risk that arises from the uncertainty concerning changes in market prices and rates
(including interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices),
the correlations among them and their levels of volatility.

Residual Risk
The risk that arises from the recognized risk measurement and mitigation techniques
used by the credit institution proves less effective than expected.

Asset Risk
Asset risk arises from the potential loss due to the change of value of the owned or
repossessed real estate and movable assets.

Model Risk

Risk that occurs when a financial model used to measure a firm's risks does not
perform the tasks or capiure the level of risks it was designed to. Any model is a
simplified version of reality, and with any simplification there is the risk that something
will fail to be accounted for.

Concentration Risk

Concentration risk is a banking term denoting the overall spread of a bank's
outstanding accounts over the number or variety of debtors to whom the bank has lent
money. This risk is calculated using a "concenfration ratic® which explains what
percentage of the outstanding accounts each bank loan represents.
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Capital and capital management (continued)

Banking book ~ Interest Rate Risk

Risk of losses on the fair value of the portfolio of banking assets and liabilities, not
including trading assets and liabilities, resulting from changes in interest rates.

Interest rate risk is taken to be the current or prospective risk to both the earnings and
capital of institutions arising from adverse movements in interest rates. In the context of
Pillar 2, this is in respect of the banking book only, given that interest rate risk in the
trading book is already covered under market risk regulations.

Liquidity Risk
The risk arising from the Bank’s potential inability to meet all payment obligations when
they come due or only being able to meet these obligations at excessive costs.

Country Risk
The risk that the Bank may suffer a loss, in any given country, due to deterioration in

economic conditions, political and social unrest, nationalization and expropriation of
assets, government repudiation of external indebtedness, exchange controls and
currency depreciation or devaluation.

Settlement Risk

Settlement risk is the risk that a transaction executed is not settled as expected through
a settlement system. Settlement risk comprises credit risk and liquidity risk elements.
Treasury ftransactions, trading book items (deals) and capital market dealings
concluded as part of investment services convey a settlement risk that is a specific mix
of credit and liquidity risk. The credit institution or the investment firm bears the risk that
while it fulfils its contractual obligations (payment or delivery), the counterparty fails or
defaults to do so.

Reputation Risk
The reputation risk is defined as a risk of a drop in profits or capital due to a negative

perception of the image of the bank by customers, counterparties, shareholders,
investors or supervisory authorities

Strategic Risk
Present or prospective strategic risk is defined as the risk linked to a potential drop in

profits or capital due to changes in the operating context or erroneous corporate
decisions, inadequate implementation of decisions or poor reactions to changes in the
competitive environment.

High Risk Portfolio

In line with the Supervisory Authority’s requirement the Group identifies the portfolio
meeting the criteria defined by the Supervisor for high risk portfolio and allocates
additional capital for it.

Applied methodologies

The Group applies Standardized Methodologies (STA) for managing Credit risks for
managing Market risks and Operational risks under the above defined Pillar 1.

The Group continuously improves the applied methodologies fo be prepared for
implementing advanced methodologies in a proper time frame.

In relation to Pillar 2 the Group implemented advanced methodology that will be
reviewed and improved periodically.
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Capital and capital management (continued)
Capital management

The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the
business. The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other
measures, the rules and ratios.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains
a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To strengthen the Bank’s capital position the
shareholders increased the Share Capital of the Bank by HUF 3 as the face value of
the issue shares in 2012. The total capital contribution that was paid by the
shareholders was HUF 101,700 million in 2012. The difference between the face value

of the shares and the total paid contribution was registered as Reserves.

Regutorycapltal B T
Share capital 145,000 145,000
Reserves 234,650 114,388
Current year’s profit or (loss) (130,522) (48,204)
Total shareholder’s equity 249,128 211,184
Deduction items:

Intangible assets (6,056) (6,526)
Tier 1 Capital 243,072 204,658
Subordinated capital 57,675 17,734
Revaluation reserve 65 111
Deductions from Tier 2 Capital (67,742) (1,059)
Tier 2 Capital {10,002) 16,786
Total Capital 233,070 221,444
Risk weighted assets for Credit risks 1,502,581 1,853,983
Risk weighted assets for Market risks 29,813 39,175
Risk weighted assets for Operating risks 257 550 253,050
Risk weighted assets 1,789,944 2,148,208
Tier 1 capital ratio 13.58% 9.54%
Total capital ratio 13.02% 10.32%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share
premium, retained earnings including current year profit, foreign currency translation
and non-controlling interests less accrued dividends, net long positions in own shares
and goodwill. The other components of regulatory capital are Tier 2 capital, which

includes subordinated long term debts, preference shares and revaluation reserves.
The minimum capital requirement is 8% under Pillart.

The capital ratios have been calculated based on the consolidated financial figures
according to the Hungarian Accounting and Reporting Standards.
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I. Business environment

Macro and micro environment

1. GDP

Hungary entered into a recessionary year in 2012 following the preceding year's modest (already
slowing) GDP growth. In each quarters of last year GDP dropped compared to the preceding quarter,
while the preliminary Q4 GDP figure showed a worse-than-expected deepening recession at -2.7% YY.
The full-year preliminary figure showed a 1.7% contraction after the year-on-year growth rate fluctuated
between -0.7% and -1.5% in Q1-Q3 last year. Export growth has deteriorated further throughout 2012
and it was unable to compensate for the weakness of household and government consumption and
investments. The deceleration of the economies of Hungary's main export partners (especially
Germany) continued to take its toll on the growth rate of exports. GDP was also significantly influenced
by the contraction of agricultural performance, primarily due to summer drought. This made the
downward revision of Q2 data necessary (after the release of the Q3 figures) and also affected the
moderate positive shift of other economic sectors in Q3. Some signs of improvement have emerged in
communication and information technology in H2 2012. Investments have remained on a downward
trend. Household consumption and government consumption both failed to support growth. The former
has remained dampened by strict lending conditions, austerity measures (including cuts in social
transfers and tax rebates) and constantly high unemployment. EUR/HUF and CHF/HUF volatility also
prompted a proportion of households with foreign currency debts to set aside more savings throughout
the period. These factors more than counterbalanced any potential positive impact of the lower in the
personal income tax to a (nominally) 16% flat since the beginning of 2011.
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GDP forecasts calculated by market participants for 2013 fall mostly between -0.5% and 1.19%,
primarily given the ongoing uncertainty surrounding the growth prospects of Hungary’ main export
partners and due to Hungary's low potential growth rate as suggested by state of the labour market
and investments. The uncertainty surrounding domestic corporations’ reaction to the rapidly changing
external environment and new domestic policy actions also contributes to this situation. The EU
Commission’s projection (updated in November 2012) suggested 0.3% GDP growth for Hungary in
2013. The IMF’s preliminary comments following the 2013 January staff visit indicate an expectation of
economic stagnation for Hungary in 2013. The government's macroeconomic forecast (underlying the
budget plan) includes a growth assumption of 0.9% for 2013 (to be revised probably in Q2 2013).
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2. Budget and external balance

The 2012 budget plan and its execution was less affected by major one-off revenues as seen during
the preceding year (when especially the transfer of private pension savings distorted the annual budget
picture), but the revenue side has remained boosted by special sectoral crisis taxes including the bank
tax. Still, the deteriorating GDP-growth outlook has continuously weighed on budget plans. Hence the
government was eventually forced to revise the 2012 fiscal target (and the 2013 plan as well)
compared to the targets outlined in the convergence program. Given the macroeconomic outlook and
also the government's commitment to keep the deficit below the Maastricht-level of 3% of GDP, the
amendment was accepted by the EU. The official deficit target for 2012 was revised from 2.5% of GDP
to 2.7% of GDP, which is now identical to the new 2013 fiscal target. While the EU’s official forecasts in
November showed a projection of 2.5% deficit for 2012 despite the revision, the Commission projects
a rise in the deficit in 2013 - though still below the 3% threshold. This is an important move forward
from earlier, more pessimistic projections not only because of the meeting of the commitments laid
down in Hungary's convergence plan, but also because of the ongoing excessive deficit procedure.
Hungary has been under the excessive deficit procedure ever since joining the EU in 2004 and
potential further breaching of the 3% limit could have threatened with the losing of EU cohesion funds
in the order of around EUR 2 billion. According to the preliminary monthly central budget data for
December 2012 the annual deficit came close to 2.1% of GDP without the balance of municipalities
(which is to be included in the ESA balance calculation). Hence the adjusted 2012 fiscal plan was
probably met. Still, the sovereign debt rate as a percentage of GDP has probably shown only modest
improvement below the 80% threshold (down from 80.8% in Q4 2011) as a result of the forint's year-
end weakening and the GDP's contraction throughout the year in 2012.

The weakness of domestic demand (both from the state sector and from households) was
accompanied by a continued favourable development in external balance indicators in 2012. The
cumulated current account balance reached a surplus of EUR 1.2 billion in Q3 following two full-year
surpluses in the time series in 2010 and 2011. The improvement in the current account was primarily a
result of a surge in the trade balance to above EUR 6 billion (cumulated) in the same period. (The full-
year trade surplus approached that of the preceding year and may have come close to EUR 7 billion in
2012.) This also indicated an ongoing improvement in the country’s net financing capacity.

3. Inflation

Inflation as measured by average CPI| was 5.7% in 2012, significantly above the 2011 average inflation
level. Despite the ongoing lack of domestic demand effects and wage-side pressures, inflation was
boosted by tax measures (including the rise of VAT from 25% to 27% in January 2012, excise taxes
hikes and also crisis taxes being passed through). As a result, inflation jumped and hovered at 5-6% in
H1 last year and even hit and exceeded 6% in some months of H2. Inflation peaked at 6.6% (the
highest level of the preceding more than 4 years) in September and retreated to 5.0% by December.
Despite the negative output gap and below-average capacity utilization underlying (core) inflation also
jumped and hit an average of 5.1% in 2012.
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4. Labour market

The unemployment rate returned to above 11% at the beginning of 2012 and started showing gradual
improvement from spring. However, this improvement came to a halt in August/September (at 10.4%)
and unemployment gradually climbed back to 10.7% by the end of the year. This essentially matched
the rate seen one year before. Participation rate as well as the overall activity rate continued rising
gradually last year. The participation rate hits 57%, which is 2 percentage points above the pre-crisis
level. However, this development was strongly affected by state-subsidized employment in addition to
changes in pension rules and the introduction of stricter rules of unemployment benefits. As a result,
the number of the employed at the end of 2012 matched the pre-crisis peaks a tad above 3.9 million.
This implies a rise of 58 thousand during the course of 2012. Also, the number of new jobs posted in
2012 was mostly state-subsidised ones. The average year-on-year growth rate in gross wages has
picked up to 4.6% in the January-November period, which shows a slight moderation in wage rise, but
still distorted by one-off measures including family benefits.
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5. Monetary policy

The National Bank of Hungary (*NBH”) launched an easing cycle in August 2012, after having left its
main policy rate unchanged at 7% for more than half-a-year. Since August, the base rate was cut by 25
bps in each month, thus moving the base rate to 5.75% by the year-end. The central bank’s rate-
setting body was deeply divided at each rate-cut decision: the easing moves were supported by the
four external council members versus the president and the two vice-presidents. Pro-rate-cut
arguments were primarily based on Hungary’s weak economic performance, weak demand conditions
and the view that inflation had been boosted by temporary upward shifts, while contra-arguments
highlighted inflationary risks that may prevent driving CPI back to the 3% target as well as highlighting
financial market / financial stability risks amid the lack of credit progress in talks with international
lenders (IMF/EU).
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The EUR/HUF exchange rate started last year's session around historical peaks (at 300-320) but
returned to sub-300 at the end of January and remained there for most of H1 2012. The FX market
was supported by elevated hopes of a new agreement with the IMF and also by a wave of
improvement in global market sentiment. While expectations of a precautionary agreement with the
IMF were more and more seriously weakened later in the course of the year, government bonds
attracted sufficient demand (with several auctions boosted by additional forint-denominated bond
sales) and the forint went on strengthening in H2 2012. With the exception of a selling wave during the
last two weeks of the year, the forint fluctuated below EUR/HUF 290 in H2 2012, even visiting sub-280
territories in August. In tandem with the new easing cycle, government bond yields moved down by
175-190bps along the entire yield curve in H2. In addition, the stock of Hungarian (forint-denominated)
government bonds owned by foreign entities rose by nearly 32% in 2012 to reach beyond HUF 5000 by
the end of the year. In tandem with the forint's appreciation and the divergence of the EUR/CHFE pair
from the SNB’s defence line of 1.20, the CHF/HUF cross rate also showed a relative appreciation of
the forint in H1 2012, while the second half of the year delivered a mostly range-bound flat market
trend at CHF/HUF 230-237. (Most risks to the stability of the financial intermediary system still stem
from the CHF/HUF rate due to FX-based mortgage loans, but risks have been decreased with the
introduction of a system of exchange-rate fixing for repayments up to 2017).
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6. Changes in the banking environment

The main challenges for the Hungarian banking sector in 2012 were
e deteriorating external environment as a result of the protracted euro area sovereign debt crisis;
* the economic outlook of Hungary is deteriorating further;

e government actions and high level of NPL portfolio have a significant negative effect on the
profitability of the Hungarian banks;

¢ high ratio of non-performing loans due to the deterioration of corporate and household portfolio
quality, as a consequence of the continued recession;

¢ dynamic outflow of external funds of the banking sector continued, however banking sector
liquidity improved parallel to financia! markets.

As a result of the deepening debt crisis of EMU periphery the chance of a new financial crisis and a
global recession increased. Due to the crisis banks are more prudent in their lending practices, their
risk appetite decreased. At the same time, due to decreasing corporate investments and consumer
spending, the demand for new loan financing remained very low. As a consequence the turnaround in
the banking sector's lending activity in both retail and corporate segments is delayed further,
contributing to a slower-than-expected economic recovery in Hungary.
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Current credit conditions, particularly in corporate lending may have effect on credit contraction. Credit
supply constraints are driven primarily ability to borrow, general contraction of investments to the
country to observed. As corporate lending and household lending are also driven predominantly by
demand factors, especially on the post crises risk appetite of the banking sector. The state interest rate
subsidy scheme reduces the initial interest costs markedly (to 8-9 per cent), which may boost credit
demand.

The biggest challenge of the domestic financial intermediary system is to manage the deteriorating
portfolio quality. New defaults weigh on profitability through loan loss provisioning. High NPL ratio
reduces itself willingness to lend, deteriorates liquidity, increases maturity mismatch and diverts funds
from lending.

Total assets and liabilities

Based on the most recent available figures (as of Sept 2012) the bank sector's overall total assets
decreased by 9.4% to HUF 29,995 billion compared to December 2011, due to the decrease of the
loan portfolio.

The gross loan portfolio decreased by 13.9% (HUF 2,987 billion) compared to December 2011 (-8.7%
excluding the foreign exchange effect). Early FX mortgage repayment had a significant part within the
contraction; however the lending capacity of Hungarian banks remained under pressure also because
of liquidity constraints on the market and due to low profitability. While Hungarian banking sector
shows a continuous decrease in customer loans, lending in other countries of the region are improving
(Poland, Czech Republic and Slovakia) or at least stagnating (Romania, Bulgaria).

Loans to households decreased continuously during the year by 15.4% (excluding FX effect: 10.5%) as
new disbursement is significantly lower than the maturing volumes, and early mortgage repayment
transactions also had a negative impact on retail loan volume. New mortgage disbursements in
January and February 2012 showed some increase, due to the refinancing connected to the early
mortgage repayment, but excluding it the demand for new loans remained at a very low level during the
year. The sector is still characterised by high volume of foreign currency loans (61.1% as of Sept,
2012).

The volume of deposits from customers decreased by 1.9% compared to the end of 2011, amounted
to HUF 12,897 billion at the end of September 2012. Both retail and corporate customers contributed to
the decrease of 2012, corporate deposit decreased by 4.6%, retail deposit by 3.2%, while other
deposits increased by 6.2% compared to December 2011. At the same time the net asset value of
investment funds increased by 1.5% (HUF 43 billion) compared to the end of last year and totaled to
HUF 3,029 billion.
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Credit quality

Portfolio quality deterioration continued in 2012, 90+ past due ratio rose by 2.7% points and reached
13.6% by Sept 2012. Despite significant new provisions the coverage ratio (Loan loss provisions / 90+
PD) decreased by 6.7%-points to 67.0%. Volume of corporate loans with more than 90 days past due
within total loan showed an increase of 4.0%-points and was 18.6% at the end of September 2012.
The retail segment's portfolio quality continued to deteriorate as well; it grew by 2.7% points to 15.7%
as of Q3 2012.
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Profitability

The profitability of the banking sector further decreased in 2012 Q3 compared to the same period of
last year. Profit after tax in local Gap totaled to HUF 5.7 billion (HUF 77 billion in 2011 Q3). Revenue
contraction exceeded the cost saving capability of the sector, as a consequence Cost /Income ratio
increased to 63% as of Q3 2012. In addition the level of new provisions is still high due to the
deterioration of loan portfolio.

Profit after tax (HUF Bn)

2009 2010 . 2012Q3

Cost/income ratio

2009 2010 2011 2012Q3

Data source: NBH, HAS
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Liquidity
The amount of securities increased by HUF 907 billion (+12.3%) primarily as a result of the significant
increase in the volume of NBH bonds in 2012,

In overall the sector’s loan-to-deposit ratio (net customer loan / customer deposits) improved from
150.5% as of December 2011 to 130.4% by September 2012 which is primarily due to the decrease in
the customer loan portfolio.

The new liquidity measures by the Hungarian National Bank introduced in 2011 also contributed to the
improving liquidity. The balance sheet coverage ratio (Liquid Assets / Total Assets) should be kept over
10%, while the limit for deposit coverage ratio (Liquid Assets / Customer Deposits) is 20%.

Loan-deposit ratio

..........

2009 2010 2011 2012Q3

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)

15,4%
13.7%]
2011 2012Q3
Data source: NBH, HAS Data source: HFSA, Credit institutions operating as joint-stock
companies and Special Financial Institutions aggregate

figures

Capital

Despite the lower level of profitability the capital position of the banking sector is still adequate. Capital
Adequacy Ratio increased by 1.7% to 15.4% as of September 2012 due to the capital increases in
several banks.

Capital injections by parent banks, steady deleveraging and the appreciation of the Forint resulted in
higher capital adequacy ratio, despite persistently high risk costs and fiscal burdens on the banking
sector.
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7. Government Actions
Sector Burdens

The Hungarian banking sector has been through several government actions during the previous
years.

¢ Extraordinary bank tax

The extraordinary bank tax of almost HUF 200 billion per year for the whole banking sector has
remained in place in 2012. The tax burden is well in excess of those levied in other countries of the
European Union and has led to deterioration in the profits of banking sector players, in addition to
harming their growth prospects. The extraordinary bank tax has also significantly damaged the banking
sector’s ability to create return on equity and to support the real economy through its lending activities,
thereby making the sector less competitive in a regional context.

¢ Transaction duty

The banking sector’s fiscal burdens increased due to the new transaction tax. The Transaction Duty
Act came into effect from 1 January 2013. The transaction duty rate is 0.2% of the transaction amount,
except cash withdrawal transactions, where 0.3%, but capped at HUF 6,000 per transaction. Al debit
transactions are subject to the duty except for money transfer between the accounts of the same
customer.

Home rescue program

The Government adopted numerous new regulations also in 2012 aiming the improvement in the
position of households with foreign currency denominated loans.

e MR3
Customers with 90 days past due mortgage loans as of 30 September 2011 were eligible for foreign
currency loan (EUR, CHF, JPY) conversion. On conversion the financial institution was required to
forgive 25% of the outstanding total exposure amount of the loans. In the compulsory program HUF 23
billion foreign currency loans were converted, the total amount of conversion (including voluntary
conversion) was more than HUF 55 billion.

e NAMA
Debtors who are socially most in need and unable to repay their mortgage loans may initiate with the
National Asset Management Company (NAMA) the purchase of their homes provided as collateral for
the mortgage loan. NAMA buys the property at a discounted price and offers a rent-back to the debtor
at a preferential rental fee.

e Buffer Account (Debt servicing at a fixed exchange rate)

Under this program, the debtor’s instalments are reduced for maximum 60 months. During this period the
debtors pay their FX mortgage loans instalments at a fix exchange rate (fixed rate: 180 HUF/CHF, 250
HUF/EUR, 2.5 HUF/JPY), while the difference of the current exchange rate and the fixed rate will be paid
after the grace period. The FX rate difference on capital part is worn by the debtor, while the FX
difference on interest is shared equally between the loan provider bank and the state. By the end of
November more than 105 thousand debtors (23.3% of the eligible customers) entered the program
{Source: HFSA).
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Il. Business strategy and priorities

Throughout 2012, CIB Bank, in conjunction with its affiliates, has continued to execute its strategy, the
kKey elements of which include organization development and business methodology implementation to
ensure long-term sustainable growth and respond to the changing business environment. This
approach is based on group-based operations, with all their inherent synergies, and a segment-based
business model.

CIB offers numerous channels to customers for providing direct feedback, and mid-term plans are
focused on ensuring that the Group becomes the primary financial services provider for customers by
providing the best overall value proposition in the market. In line with the above strategy, CIB also aims
to adopt a coordinated, reasoned and focused approach in fine-tuning its business model. Key
elements of this approach include simplification of banking processes and enhancement of customer
satisfaction.

With that said, CIB Group strives to distinguish itself from competitors in all segments by adopting
high-quality banking processes and offering service excellence to customers. The Group has
continued to execute its “New Bank” program throughout 2012. Key elements of the program include
development of commercial capabilities; achieving operational excellence; Basel Il; Workout and
problem assets management; excellence in finances: excellence in IT, excellence in human resources
management; responsible lending compliance and regulatory compliance.

The position of the Group is being solid in the corporate area, for CIB Group a retail and SME
segments continue to be key business areas for growth. A major step was the introduction of a
dedicated network of contacts for micro enterprises in our branch network throughout Hungary at the
end of 2012. To secure the bank’s future revenues and maintain its market position, commercial
capability enhancement will continue to be a focus area in the years to come. CIB places extra focus
on the development of its retail business, and, accordingly, it aims to become a primary retail bank for
its customers. This goes hand in hand with the ability to further improve deposit collection efficiency
and provide high-quality asset management services. On the lending side, in addition to maintaining its
major position in the market, the bank aims to develop mortgage and loan products for the retail
segment that give a boost to house renewal projects. CIB Group continues to improve its bank
assurance franchise through which the bank diversifies its service portfolio with a full range of
insurance products.

The second priority in CIB's mid-term strategy lies in the financing of the real economy and
consequently the further development of its products and services for SME and Micro enterprise
sectors. As a start CIB developed a dedicated SME network in its main branches through which the
bank wishes to further promote its complex banking and leasing services. Apart from corporate loans
and leasing services CIB Bank provides other methods of financing available for enterprises e.g.
through its factoring business line.

While the above sectors are currently its main areas of focus, CIB has set out new goals to maintain
the performance of its large corporate business line. During the coming years CIB will leverage the
synergies inherent in its ownership by Intesa Sanpaolo, thereby increasing its presence in the
muiltinational sector. The main rationale is to operate a uniformed and therefore transparent and cost-
effective service structure. Consequently CIB is one of the first banks in Hungary, aimed at improving
its capabilities at serving multinational companies in the areas of cash management and trade
financing. Beyond these objectives, boosting the effectiveness of customer relationship management,
increasing corporate deposit ratio and deepening cross-selling activities are also a priority.

In order to help ensure the quality of the Group’s loan portfolio, the Group had formerly set up a special
non-performing loan Recovery unit. This unit is to ensure a solid basis to maximize recovery originating
from non-performing assets of Group portfolio. Developing the Recovery unit, CIB aims to further
develop its recovery processes and capabilities that will help to protect the value of the balance sheet
and maintain a healthy balance between growth and sustainable loss rates in order to effectively
manage the overall stability of the institution.
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lll. Strengths and potential risks of CIB Group

Main strengths

1. Solid liquidity position

CIB Group has a strong liquidity position as the parent company has ensured a consistent commitment
towards CIB's funding over the past years. The high degree dependency on Intesa Sanpaolo has
begun to decrease over the past years as CIB has focused hard on enhancing its self-funding capacity.
As a consequence the share of Intesa Sanpaolo funding within the total deposit fell from 26% as of
December 2009 to 14% as of December 2012. Efforts in the previous years to increase the customer
deposit base and the deleveraging have improved the loan-to-deposit ratio of the CIB Group from
165.4% in December 2009 to 115.8% in December 2012.

Parent Company Sources and Customer
Deposits
Loan/Deposit ratio of CIB Group
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Data source: CIB Group, IFRS Data source: CIB Group, IFRS

2. Cost efficiency

The Group has initiated and begun the execution of a wide-ranging cost management programs that
resulted 16% decrease in staff number compared to 2009 and lower operating costs. To mitigate the
consequences of worsening credit quality CIB Group created a group-wide recovery platform and
improved the collection and restructuring process. This led to significant additional expenses, which
were necessary to improve overall recovery rate on NILs. Overall cost savings reached 10.6%
compared to 2009, despite the additional workout expenses.

Operating Expenses Staff number
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Data source: CIB Group, IFRS Data source: CIB Group, IFRS
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3. Capital adequacy

The capital adequacy ratio of CIB Group under Tier 1 is higher than the regulatory minimum of 8% and
totaled 13.0% at the end of December 2012. To offset the losses CIB's owner increased the Group's

equity by HUF 101.7 billion in 2012. The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is 13.9% under Tier 1 b
slightly under the sector’s average. Further actions to maintain stable ca

top priority for the Group.
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4. Strong market position
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CIB Group has a solid client base across the country in all market segments including retail, local
corporate, SME and micro businesses through its banking and leasing network. The Group is one of
the largest players in corporate lending where it had 14.0% market share at the end of December 2012
and in the retail deposits market (10.1% share in December 2012). Its customer base totaled to almost
640,000 customers by the end of December 2012.
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5. Clearly Defined Organizational Structure & Strong Governance

CIB Group has clearly defined organizational structure and strong governance model to ensure
transparency, accountability and integrity of its operations. The Group's organizational structure
consists of business units, control and support units to enable efficient management across all of the
Group’s entities. Key executive decision making is further enhanced by operational committees that
decide and review spectrum of matters concerning commercial risk assumption, liquidity, distressed
asset management, legal, regulatory and compliance related subjects. Furthermore operational
management is enhanced by set of controls and decision making mechanisms concerning Board of
Directors, Supervisory Board and Audit Committee. To comply with new local and EU-based regulatory
frameworks the Group also established Compensation committee consisting of non-executive Board
Members.

Potential risks

1. Credit risk

The effects of the unfavourable economic environment have negatively impacted asset quality across
all segments — and the related cost of risk. The Group applied prudent provisioning policy so overall
provision volumes have cumulatively increased by more than HUF 180 billion during the three years.
The provisions-to-customer loans ratio increased from 5.4% to 17.2% by December 2012 from
December 2009.
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2. Interest income and expenses

Net Interest Income of the Group dropped by 35% compared to the same period of last year. Low
demand for new financing over the past years caused the continuous erosion of the Group’s customer
loan portfolio. This together with the increasing proportion of Non Performing Loans resulted in a drop
of interest income. On the liabilities side bank deposits became more expensive driven by increasing
CDS prices that led to the increase of interest expenses.

3. Foreign currency exchange and liquidity risk

Foreign currency loans make up almost 72% of the total loan portfolio while foreign currency deposits
(including issued securities) represent 25% of total deposits that indicates a significant foreign
exchange mismatch in CIB Group's balance sheet. Despite the fact that from the beginning of 2009 the
Bank ceased the disbursement of CHF loans, CIB Group still depends on the swap markets that
represent an extra risk in case of a serious liquidity shock. However the bank receives continuous
support through credit line and swap facilities from its parent company and more than 87% of its swap
book is medium term.
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4. Repossessed collateral risk

To minimise credit losses the Group started the repossession of real estate collaterals behind non
performing loans in 2009. By the end of December 2012 the Group had a repossessed real estate
portfolio of HUF 115.7 billion, which could potentially lead to impairments if the decrease of real-estate
prices continues.

5. Regulatory environment
Home rescue program

The Government adopted numerous new regulations during 2011 at aiming the improvement in the
position of households with foreign currency denominated loans. Although the main part of the program
was closed in 2012 (early repayment at preferential rate and 25% haircut on non-performing mortgage
portfolio), the availability of the buffer account construction (debt servicing at a fixed exchange rate
being lower than current market rates for 5 years) was lengthened.

Tax burdens

The extraordinary banking sector tax was expected to be halved in 201 3, however due to the
government efforts to keep the budget deficit under control the tax was extended at their original
amount to indefinite period of time.

The new transactional duty came into effect in 2013 and will cause additional tax burden.

6. Slow market recovery in Hungary

The European and global economic recovery turned out to be slower than expected. Hungary is an
open, export-driven economy that depends largely on the strength and stability of demand from its
main trading partners and this may affect customer demand for financial services to a great extent.
Domestic demand is likely to decrease further, as a result of which the Hungarian banking sector will
continue to operate in a very weak economic environment in the coming future.

As Hungary depends on the external financial markets to a great extent the sovereign crisis in the EMU
and the unusual economic measures of the government could lead again to a significant jump of CDS
prices, increased swap costs and deteriorating local currency that would affect the funding cost of the
banking sector negatively.

IV. Outlook for the Bank Group

No improvement is foreseen for 2013 as the asset quality is expected to deteriorate further, due to
tentative economic recovery and material exposure to troubled commercial real estate / construction
sector and foreign currency denominated mortgages. However deterioration in the retail book could
subside somewhat if government-sponsored aid schemes for households prove successful. Low level of
demand for financing and the lengthened banking sector tax will also effect the Group negatively.

1. No recovery in banking sector

The Hungarian economy is expected stagnate in 2013, due to the vulnerability of the couniry's
economy. Demand for new loans will remain at a low level as investments and retail consumption are
still decreasing. The residential real estate market will be under pressure in the future that also
deteriorates business environment of the retail mortgage market and negatively influences the banking
sectors’ risk appetite in this field. The commercial real-estate market will suffer from the excess
capacities that were built in the pre-crisis years, which makes the banks extremely cautious in
financing new real-estate projects. The leasing market, where CIB is one of the largest players, was
strongly affected by the crisis, due to both the shrinking of the market and the deterioration in portfolio
quality. The new disbursement of the sector in 2012 was 0.5% below the level of the previous vesr its
level had already been severely affected by the crisis and amounted to only HUF 350 billion.
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2. Profitability remains under pressure

Profitability of the Hungarian banking sector will remain under pressure due to shrinking loan portfolio,
credit quality and taxation related issues. The high volume of non-performing loan portfolio will
significantly affect the profitability of the banks including CIB through further impairments, lower income
generation and increased costs of work-out activities.

The decrease in the loan portfolio and the profitability of the banking sector may lead the Bank to
impose further efficiency improving measures.

The new transaction duty, which came into effect on 1 January 2013, exerts additional burden on the
banking system and may cause a decrease in customer transaction volume, negatively affecting the
transactional revenue of the Bank. In addition to the new tax, the extraordinary banking sector tax that
was expected to be halved from 2013 will be in effect in its original amount.
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V. Evaluation on the performance of CIB Group including net assets, financial
and earning position ("

Assets

The balance sheet total of CIB Group amounted to HUF 2,119 billion (-16.0%) as of December 2012.
The lower balance was primarily a consequence of shrinking customer loan portfolio.

Customer Loans

At the end of December, 2012 CIB Group’s consolidated gross loan portfolio was HUF 1,832 billion
(-15.9%; -11.7% fx adjusted). Within the total portfolio the proportion of retail loans (mortgage, car
financing and others) reached 32.4% by the end of December 2012, negatively affected by the fixed
rate mortgage conversion, while real estate financing accounted for 21.5% (-1 1%) of the portfolio. The
share of large corporate and SME loans increased slightly during the current year. Demand for new
financing was low through the whole period although retail new disbursements increased by more than
88% (supported by the refinancing of fixed rate mortgage conversion deals, without this effect no
improvement can be seen) and lease financing could also show some improvement compared to the
very low levels of the previous years. Sale of non-performing loans reduced the customer loans
balance by almost HUF 50 billion.

Loan portfolio quality

In line with the situation on the Hungarian banking market the credit quality of CIB Group’s loan
portfolio also deteriorated. The share of 90-days past due loans increased by 3.8% points to
25.1%.The most notable increase occurred in the retail segment, where the share of 90-days past-due
portfolio rose by 5.2% points compared to December 2011 and reached 23.6% by the end of
December 2012, negatively affected by fixed rate mortgage conversion that lowered the performing
loan portfolio by HUF 125 billion. In case of real estate finance the worsening of the portfolio continued
in line with the crisis of the sector and the share of 90-days past due portfolio reached 26.9% (+3.4%)
by the end of 2012. During the year of 2012 CIB provisioned HUF 128 billion to cover potential losses
from non performing loans.

Securities

The Group held securities portfolio of HUF 261 billion by December 2012 (+65%) of which trading
portfolio amounted to HUF 26.3 billion; available-for-sale portfolio reached HUF 228.4 billion, while held
to maturity portfolio was HUF 5.7 billion. The majority of the security portfolio (99.3% of total securities
held) consisted of Hungarian government bonds. The Group also holds municipality bonds amounting
to HUF 50 billion that are classified as customer loan.

Repossessed properties, Tangible and Intangible Assets

As part of the recovery strategy CIB Group continued to repossess real-estates in 2012 that previously
served as collateral for non-performing loan. As a result of this the value of fixed and intangible assets
reached HUF 157.1 billion of which the repossessed properties was HUF 115.7 billion.

Interbank Receivables

CIB Group's liquid assets portfolio — cash and equivalents and interbank loans — amounted to HUF 141
billion (-34.9%) by the end of December of which 11% was placed within Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

“E Compared to December 2011 in case of IFRS Balance Sheet and to the same period of 2011 in case of IFRS
P& figures
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Liabilities
Customer Deposits

Total customer deposits, including issued bonds, amounted to HUF 1,363 billion (-7.5%) by the end of
December 2012. The balance was negatively affected by the withdrawal of some large corporate
deposit and the fixed rate mortgage conversion, which significantly eroded consumer savings.
Consumer funds (including issued bonds and investment funds) were HUF 870 billion at the end of
December 2012 (+1.5%) and their share within total customer deposits amounted to 63.8%.

Deposit from banks

Interbank funds - including subordinated deposits ~ totaled to HUF 499 billion (-32.1%) as of
December 2012. Most of the funds came from the Group's parent company, accounting for almost
60% of the total of interbank deposits. Medium term lines from ISP amounted to HUF 270 billion
(-37%), as the shrinking loan portfolio made the repayment of some ISP financing possible. Short term
loans from ISP decreased to HUF 79 billion (-43.3%) as the improving liquidity position of the Group
made possible the repayment of short term ISP funds.

Equity

CIB Group’s total shareholders’ equity was HUF 194.4 billion (-20.4%) following the equity increase of
HUF 101.7 billion received from the parent company during 2012 to offset the losses of the current
year.

Assets (HUF billion)
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Profit and loss

The Group closed the year of 2012 with a loss of HUF 152.9 billion, due to the effects of deteriorating
external environment, high ratio of non-performing loan portfolio and increasing funding cost and the
extraordinary bank tax.

Revenues

Total revenue of CIB Group amounted to HUF 83.2 billion (-30.9%), out of which Net Interest
Income was HUF 35.4 billion (-40.2%), Net Commission Income was HUF 26.6 biltion (-13.0%),
while Trading Income totalled to HUF 18.3 billion (-35.3%).

Net interest income decrease is partly a result of volume drop as a consequence of mortgage
conversion and portfolio run-off, and partially due to lower spreads because of substantially
higher funding cost and increase of assets non-producing interest due to deterioration of the
portfolio. Global spread (Net Interest Margin / Average Total Assets) of 1.5% decreased by 83
bps compared to the same period of last year.

Net commission income decrease was a consequence of lower fees on customer transaction
activity (current account transactions, cash management services, brokerage and insurance
fees).

Trading lower income was the consequence of derivative portfolio revaluation losses, connected
to basis swap deals, as decreasing swap costs in the second half of the year resulted in the drop
of the fair value of these deals.

Breakdown of revenues - 2011

I n 2’3
NOM NIl

NCI Trading Other
Relative weight
49,2% 25,4% 23,5% 1,9%

Breakdown of revenues - 2012

832
266
m
NOM N

NCI Trading Other

Relative weight
42.6% 32,0% 22,0% 3.4%

Data source: CIB Group, IFRS

19027



Business Report 31 December 2012 CIB Bank Ltd.
and subsidiaries

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses of the Group amounted to HUF 56 billion in 2012 without the extraordinary
bank tax. The net of operating expenses without misceallenous tax and fee related expenses
decreased compared to the same period last year. Ordinary expenses kept on shrinking as CIB’s
management implemented a cost-reduction program in the past years. As a result personnel expenses
decreased by 2.3% in 2012 in line with the lower staff number (by 190 persons), while ordinary
administrative expenses dropped by 7.5% compared to the previous year. On the other hand higher
cost of loan recovery activity caused 47% increase in workout expenses that almost eliminated the
savings of ordinary expenses. One-off expenses connected to branch closures also contributed to the
increase of administrative expenses. The cost-to-income ratio rose to 66.9% in 2012 (20.6% points
higher than in 2011) as cost reduction initiatives could not offset the effect of declining revenues.

Extraordinary Bank Tax

Total extraordinary bank tax of the Group for financial year 2012 amounted to HUF 12 billion. On the
various government mortgages rescue programs the Bank could recover HUF 569 million.
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Allowances and provisions

The amount of new allowances and provisions reached HUF 155.6 billion compared to HUF 105.7
billion in 2011. Out of the total, loan loss provisions reached HUF 128 billion, more than half of the new
provisioning came from the project finance segment, due to deterioration of portfolio quality in line with
the extended recession and its impact on valuations across many asset classes. On the other hand
new provisions in the retail business decreased compared to last year by 48% as year 2011 was
negatively impacted by mortgage conversion losses. The cost of credit (Provisioning / Loan volume)
amounted to an extraordinary 10.2% in 2012.
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In addition to loan loss provisions the Group recorded HUF 25 billion impairment on its repossessed
assets portfolio, that is also a legacy of the project financing activities of the pre-crisis period. The
impairment was necessary as appetite for Hungarian real estate, especially larger development assets
with no or limited rental income, from domestic or foreign buyers remains limited and will remain so in
the medium term.
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VI. Operations of the subsidiaries in 2012"

As part of the efficiency improvement program the Group started the simplification of its company
structure in 2010 that continued in 2011 and 2012 resulting in a reduced number of subsidiaries.

The Group structure was the following at each 31 December:

(number of companies) 2012 2011
Companies for providing services and products to Group’s customers 7 7
Companies responsible for the management of repossessed assets 4 4
Companies responsible for the management of Group’s operating premises 0 1
Total 11 12

1. Companies for providing services and products to Group’s customers
= CIB Leasing Zrt.

The business profile of the company, founded in 2000, is closed-end financial lease ~ primarily related
to motor vehicles — and to provide financing to the purchase of vehicles and machinery. At the end of
2010 CIB Credit Zt, CIB Property Zrt, and CIB Residential Property Zrt merged into CIB Leasing Zrt
making the company the only entity in CIB Group providing financial leasing services. The operation of
the company was significantly affected by the performance of the Leasing market. New volume on the
market decreased by 0.5% compared to 2011, and amounted to HUF 350 billion in 2012. With a
market share of 10.7% (as of December 2012) CIB Leasing subsidiaries were the largest players on
the market. The total assets of the company in December 2012 were HUF 253 billion, significantly
affected by the decreasing customer loan portfolio. Net results for the year 2012 was HUF 25.5 billion
loss, due to the decrease of net interest income and high provision building.

= CIB Rent Zrt.

The company is specialised in operative leasing transactions. The total assets of the company at the end
of 2012 were HUF 14.3 billion, while net profit reached HUF 82 million.

¢ CIB Real Estate Leasing Zrt.

The company started its operation in May 2001 with business activity of financial leasing of real estates.
At the end of 2012 total assets of CIB Real Estate Leasing Zrt. amounted to HUF 10 billion, while its net
result was a loss of HUF 323 million.

= CIB Leasing Holding Kft.

The company was established by a demerger from CIB Rent Zrt. in 2010, executes the owner rights in
CIB Leasing Zrt and has no other activity. Total assets of the company reached HUF 25.1 billion by the
end of the year, which includes only its shareholding in CIB Leasing Zrt, the company had a loss of
HUF 12 billion in 2012, due to HUF 11.5 billion impairment of its investments

= CIB Insurance Broker Kff.

The company was founded in 2001 to deal with insurance brokerage activities. At the end of 2012 total
assets of CIB Insurance Broker Kft. amounted to HUF 1.1 billion, while its net result was HUF 251
million.

" Balance Sheet and P&L figures are based on the HAS stand alone financial statements
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> CIB Investment Fund Management Zrt.

The objective of the company is to offer flexible and low cost funds that invest on domestic and
international financial markets for its clients and for the customers of CIB Bank Ltd. The company
started its first investment fund in 1997 and by widening its product range continuously it built up the
CIB Investment Fund family, which includes currently 19 funds with significantly different investment
policy. Net asset value of the investment funds reached HUF 172 billion by end of 2012. The company
closed year 2012 with a profit of HUF 578 million. In January 2013 CIB Investment Fund Management
Zrt was sold to Eurizon Capital (a member of ISP Group).

= CIB Factor Zrt.

The company became part of CIB Group in 2004. Its main activity is the factoring of receivables and the
cross-selling of products with the SME division of the Bank. At the end of 2012 total assets of the
company reached HUF 15.8 billion, while net results amounted to HUF 227 million.

2. Companies responsible for the management of repossessed assets
= Recovery Litd.

Recovery Ltd. (previously Expert Ltd.) is the main vehicle for the repossession of real estates. On 31
December 2011 CIB REAL Zrt. (a company dealing with the management of Group's operating
premises) merged with Recovery Kft. The sole legal successor of the merged entities is Recovery Zrt.
Total assets of the company closed at HUF 134.5 billion, because of continued asset purchases. Due to
financing cost of the real estate portfolio and because of some impairment connected to the previously
repossessed real estates, the company closed the year with a loss of HUF 27.1 billion.

= CIB Car Ltd.

The company was founded in year 20086, to deal with vehicle trading. Total assets at the end of 2012
were HUF 0.8 billion, while the annual result was a profit of HUF 46 million.

= CIL MNM Ltd.

CIL MNM Ltd. was established in 2006. Its main activity is to operate and let real-estates. Total assets
and net results of the company in 2012 were immaterial.

= Brivon Hungary Ltd.

Brivon Hungary Ltd. was established in 2009 as an SPV, who holds a significant share in a residential
project as the only asset. Total assets of the company were HUF 18.3 billion, while net result for 2012
amounted to HUF 2.7 billion loss, due to the interest expenses paid to finance its assets and because of
the impairment recorded on the real estate.

VIi. Key events and processes occurring after the balance sheet date

The Group sold its investment in CIB Investment Fund Management Ltd on 14 January 2013 within
Intesa Sanpaolo Group to Eurizon Capital S A.

23727



Business Report 31 December 2012 CIB Bank Ltd.
and subsidiaries

VIII. Utilisation of financial instruments in the Group

The Group holds a substantial quantity of financial instruments. The purpose of the HUF 325 billion in
cash and cash equivalents is to ensure immediate liquidity above the unencumbered high quality security
portfolio. The portfolio of securities held for trading of a value of HUF 26.2 billion, serves several
purposes at the same time: these investments (besides serving customers with securities) represent a
short-term profit-earning opportunity for the Bank, while also serving as a secondary source of liquidity
besides its cash-type assets. The majority of the securities portfolio that totals HUE 234.8 billion is
available for sale (AFS), while a lesser proportion of HUF 5.6 billion belongs to the held-to-maturity
category. The Group holids a municipality bond portfolio up to HUF 52 billion that is treated as Loans and
advances to customers.

The derivative transactions concluded by the Group cover the following derivatives: (1.) FX forward
(stock-exchange and OTC) contracts (2.) FX swaps, (3.) FX options, (4.) interest rate swaps and (5.)
forward rate agreements. The Group performs such transactions mainly for hedging purposes. In the
latter case the primary objective is not to hedge individual transactions (with a few exceptions see below),
but to reduce the bank’s global FX and interest rate risk position.

IX. Risk-management and hedging policy of the Group

The Group’s regulations pertaining to the various significant types of risk are approved, and reviewed
at least once a year, by the Board of Directors. The Group has credit risk management, market risk
management, liquidity and liquidity crisis management, country risk management and operational risk
management policies. These regulations serve to define the framework of its activities related to the
specific areas of risk management along unified principles across the entire Group.

CiB Group’s credit risk management policy defines fundamentals of credit risk management across the
Group, risk appetite of the Group both on general level and on an annual basis adjusted to the
changing business environment. Basic roles and responsibilities, clear segregation of duties and major
tools of credit risk measurement and management are unambiguously defined in the policy.

The market risk management policy includes the guiding principles related to currency and share-price
risk, as well as interest risk, the regulations containing methodology of sensitivity analyses and value-
at-risk calculations, as well as the market risk limits.

The liquidity policy determines the fundamental principles, goals, and available means of and
procedures for liquidity management. Beyond these, it also regulates the permissible extent of liquidity
limits, as well as the means and the organisational framework for monitoring them. When elaborating
the liquidity strategy, the bank’s senior management takes into consideration the likely future
development of business volumes, and the cost and other attributes of available funds.

The liquidity crisis policy specifies the procedures to be followed and the range of means that may be
employed in an unexpected but possible crisis situation, and the order in which these may be applied
depending on the causes and nature of the crisis. In these regulations, the bank also quantifies the
maximum acceptable extent of losses based on a stress test that simulates the crisis situation.

The Group applies hedge accounting to some specific assets and liabilities hedged by interest rate
swaps in order to mitigate its interest rate risk in the Banking Book. The method of recognising the
resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument. The Group in accordance with IERS and Intesa Sanpaolo Group policies designates
certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments
(fair value hedge). In the case of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the
fair value of such derivative instrument are recognised immediately in the income statement.

The country risk management policy regulates the method for establishing limits for individual
countries, and also specifies the extent of the regularly reviewed limits.

The operational risk management guidelines define the events that are grouped into this risk category,
and the methods for measuring the risks of this type borne by the Group.
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X.  Price, credit, interest, liquidity and cash-flow risks of the Group

In the course of its business operations, the Group is primarily and mainly exposed to credit risk.
The mitigation of this type of risk is achieved partly through compliance with the statutory requirements
and internal limits, and partly through prudent lending and loss-provisioning practices.

Legal requirements as well as best practices of risk management are transformed into daily operations
of the Group by internal regulations. The internal regulations treat in detail the procedures related to
debtor rating, limit-setting, the recognition and evaluation of collateral, loan and customer monitoring,
and risk management, applicable to the various customers and customer groups. They also specify the
lending-related responsibilities and duties of the individual organisational units. In keeping with the
requirements of the supervisory bodies and its owner, the Group pursues a prudent policy with regard
to the assumption of risk.

Lending process is managed along structured principles in its entire complexity from customer request
via credit approval and monitoring until full repayment of the loan or, if unavoidable, until work-out
management. Basis of any credit-risk related decision is the exposure of the group of connected clients
towards CIB Group as a whole.

On account of its activities the Group is exposed to interest rate risk in its core business. Accepting a
certain level of interest rate risk is inherent in the business of banking and can be a major source of
results and value creation. Each year, the Board of Directors, under the supervision of the Supervisory
Board, determines the risk appetite and corresponding limits. Reports on the current interest rate risk
position are submitted to the respective risk management committees on a monthly basis and
regulated in the market risk management policy.

Special emphasis is also placed on the management of liquidity and cash-flow risks, due to the high
importance of maintaining the Bank's solvency and ensuring the safety of customer deposits at all
times. Over the past year, as a result of the crisis that began in 2008, the bank’s asset-side activity fell
considerably. In the second part of the year, we had considerable superfluous liquidity, which enabled
us to repay to the parent bank the funds utilised during the crisis. Also as a result of the crisis, the
Group had to contend with the substantially higher costs of using the FX and basis swap market.

Among the various price risks, the Group is predominantly susceptible to the impacts of changes in
currency exchange rates, while fluctuations in the market values of securities and other prices have a
lesser effect. The Group aims to hedge its FX positions as well as possible: the carefully considered
assumption of positions is achieved as a part of the trading activities performed by the Treasury.

XI. Research and development

In 2012 the Group had no own research and development and not participated in the financing of any
research projects.

in 2011 the Group participated in the following key areas:
e The effect of corporate crediting on innovation and growth;
* International lessons of EUR introduction and its domestic conditions from macro economy
and banking sector’s point of view:
¢ Tendency of retail funds types;
The models of getting out from crisis in the case of major central-European banks
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Xil. Employment policy of the Group

In 2012, we continued the implementation of our human resources strategy defined in the year before.
Through launching key HR initiatives, our aim is to build an organization which functions as a
motivated, cooperative, effective and strong community.

Along with the HR initiatives, in 2012 we continued the headcount rationalization process, in terms of
cost efficiency. The reduction was implemented in full compliance with the provisions of the Labor
Code. We also continued to support the re-employment of our former colleagues through a
professional outplacement program in cooperation with an expert service provider, resulting in almost
90% of the participants of the outplacement program being able to find new employment possibilities.

In summary, the Human Resources Division primarily concentrated on the below focus areas in 2012,
which are an integral part of the comprehensive cultural development process launched in the Bank
Group:

* introducing a new performance management system;

e human capital development through structured career planning and game changing
opportunities for talents;

s working out a new reward strategy;
* strengthening employee engagement:

* HR excellence through leading edge solutions and customer satisfaction.

In order to strengthen employee engagement and loyalty, we continued our specific programs, which
became the trademark of the Bank Group's overall cultural change process in the second half of the
year.

Through our initiatives, in 2012 we worked to make CIB a more attractive workplace, which we can be
proud of, and thus build a strong and attractive employer brand which will help us to find and keep
talented colleagues in order to achieve our business goals.

With the aim to make our key HR processes more efficient and up-to-date on the one hand, and to
improve the quality of HR reporting on the other, we initialized a comprehensive review in 2012. We
have produced the new training, recruitment-selection, rewarding and labour policies which are to be
approved in 2013.

Xlll. Sites of operation

The Group’s head office is located at 1027 Budapest, Medve u. 4-14.

XIV. Environmental protection

Considering the nature of our Company's activities, the protection of the environment does not have a
significant impact on our financial position. Nevertheless, our Company is consciously striving to
reduce its environmental impact, both direct and indirect, to the minimum. The Bank Group made
significant efforts again in 2012 to engage its employees in the various environmental programs and
energy conservation initiatives that it had launched. In line with the practice of previous years, these
initiatives focus on energy efficiency primarily through communication and engagement, while providing
a unified framework for all related activities.

At the start of 2012 we expanded our selective waste collection program to include new buildings of
ours. The objective of this program is to find a solution for the selective management of waste
generated in our buildings by establishing a state-of-the-art waste management system, thus reducing
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the quantity of communal waste and improving our energy balance sheet. It is a further goal of the
program to motivate colleagues to take responsibility, through intensive communication on selective
waste collection.

It is a significant change in terms of our corporate governance that the CIB Group has adopted the
environmental sustainability guidelines of the parent company that must be observed in relation to all
external and internal events, and it also began the practical implementation of sustainability guidelines
on paper use.

Overall, we are pleased to report that in 2012 we succeeded in significantly reducing both our energy
use and our paper consumption.

Budapest, 27 February 2013
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